Public Document Pack

Argyll

Argyll and Bute Council

Combhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid l%}?Bllte
COUNCIL

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT

Tel: 01546 602127 Fax: 01546 604444
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD

e.mail —nigel.stewart@argyll-bute.gov.uk

Corporate Services
Director: Nigel Stewart

12 September 2008

NOTICE OF MEETING

A meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY,
LOCHGILPHEAD on FRIDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2008 at 11:00 AM, which you are requested to
attend.

Nigel Stewart
Director of Corporate Services

BUSINESS
1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)

3. MINUTES
Audit Committee 27 June 2008 (Pages 1 - 6)

4. SELF ASSESSMENT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
Presentation by Gary Devlin, Grant Thornton UK LLP, External Auditors

5. AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF ISSUES FROM JUNE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 7 - 16)

6. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2008-2009
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 17 - 20)

7. EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2008-2009
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 21 - 38)

8. INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 39 - 44)

9. AUDIT SCOTLAND REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 2008-2009
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 45 - 76)



10.

1.

12

13.

14.

15.

16.

PYRAMID - PROGRESS REPORT
Report by Chief Executive’s Unit (Pages 77 - 80)

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORTS
Report by Chief Executive’s Unit (Pages 81 - 84)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY STRATEGY
Report by Governance and Risk Manager (Pages 85 - 86)

INTERNAL AUDIT SECONDMENT POLICY
Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 87 - 90)

INTERIM MANAGEMENT REPORT
Report by Grant Thornton UK LLP, External Auditors (Pages 91 - 114)

REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT
Report by Grant Thornton UK LLP, External Auditors (Pages 115 - 124)

IT SYSTEMS AND APPLICATIONS
Report by Grant Thornton UK LLP, External Auditors (Pages 125 - 138)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Councillor Gordon Chalmers Councillor Mary-Jean Devon
Councillor Bruce Marshall Councillor Roderick McCuish
lan M M Ross Councillor Ron Simon

Christopher Valentine

Contact: Fiona McCallum Tel. No. 01546 604406



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

MINUTES of MEETING of AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY,
LOCHGILPHEAD
on FRIDAY, 27 JUNE 2008

Present: lan M M Ross (Chair)
Councillor Roderick McCuish Councillor Ron Simon
Attending: Charles Reppke, Head of Democratic Services and Governance

Bruce West, Head of Strategic Finance

Danny Longwill, Head of Personnel Services (for item 4)
Paul Cairns, ICT Development Manager (for item 3)
Alex Colligan, Internal Audit Manager

Gary Devlin, Grant Thornton UK LLP

Apologies: Councillor Mary Jean Devon Councillor Bruce Marshall
Councillor Gordon Chalmers Dr Christopher Valentine

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None declared.
2. MINUTES

The Minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on 27 March 2008 were
approved as a correct record.

3. COMMUNITY SERVICES - EDUCATION COMPUTER SERVICES REVIEW
The audit of the Education Network which was undertaken by Audit Scotland in
2004/2005 highlighted several recommendations that required action. The Audit
Committee at its meeting on 27 March 2008 requested that the Head of Planning
and Performance provide an explanation for the delay in implementation of the
recommendations of the Education Computer Service Review. A report
explaining the reasons for these delays was before the Committee for
consideration.

Decision
To note the contents of the report.

(Reference: Report by Director of Community Services dated 27 May 2008,
submitted).

4. MANAGING ATTENDANCE

A report advising on the Managing Attendance policy and procedures within the
Council was considered.

Decision

To note the contents of the report.



Page 2

(Reference: Report by Head of Personnel Services dated 16 June 2008,
submitted).

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2007-2008

Internal Audit has the responsibility to provide to the Audit Committee an Annual
report that comments on the duties and audits carried out by the section
throughout the financial year. The Annual Report for 2007 - 2008 was before the
Committee for consideration.

Decision
To approve the Internal Annual Audit Report for 2007 - 2008.

(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 10 June 2008 and Annual
Internal Audit Report 2007-2008, submitted).

AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2007-2008

The Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government (the Code) issued
by CIPFA in 2000 sets out good practice in delivering internal audit services.
The Code was revised in 2006 and Grant Thornton UK LLP, in May 2007 carried
out a Code Compliance Review resulting in a report. One resultant
recommendation required that the Audit Committee produce an Annual Report to
the Council. A report summarising the work of the Audit Committee during the
year and outlining its view of the Council’s internal control framework, risk
management and governance arrangements was before the Committee for
consideration.

Decision

To note and approve the contents of the report for submission to the Council.
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 9 June 2008, submitted).
EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2008-2009

The Committee considered a report detailing the results from a review performed
%gg’fernal Audit on recommendations due to be implemented by 31 March

Decision

1. To note the contents of the report and that these will be followed up by
Internal Audit; and

2. To agree that if Actions F4 and F5 detailed at Appendix 2 of the report are
not implemented by the time the Audit Committee next meets the Head of
Roads and Amenity Services be asked to report the reasons for this delay at
the next Audit Committee meeting on 19 September 2008; and

3. To note that the Internal Audit Manager will advise the Procurement Staff
that outstanding Action |12 detailed at Appendix 2 should be progressed and



10.

Page 3

does not need to wait until amendments are made to the Council’s
Constitution.

(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 4 June 2008, submitted)
RISK MANAGEMENT AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY STRATEGY

A report on the progress being made with the implementation of the Council’s
Risk Management Business Continuity Strategy was considered.

Decision

1. To note the terms of the report; and

2. To note that the Head of Democratic Services and Governance hopes to
bring a presentation on the work undertaken to implement the Council’s

Business Continuity Strategy to the next meeting of the Audit Committee.

(Reference: Report by Governance and Risk Manager dated 6 June 2008,
submitted).

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORTS

A report summarising the Service quarterly reports for the period January to
March 2008, consisting of the exceptional performance sections only was
considered.

Decision

1. To note the contents of the report; and

2. To agree to invite the Performance Manager to the next meeting of the Audit
Committee to give a progress report on the implementation of Pyramid.

(Reference: Report by Chief Executive’s Unit, submitted).

AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF ISSUES FROM QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE
REPORTS FROM MARCH AUDIT COMMITTEE

At the Audit Committee meeting on 27 March 2008 a request was made for an
explanation on why there had been a rise from 71 to 100 employees in the top
2% of earners during the period October to December 2007. An explanation
was also requested on the reason for the rise in exception reports relating to
Audit Care. A report responding to these requests was considered.

Decision

To note the contents of the report.

(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 8 June 2008, submitted)



1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Page 4

BRUICHLADDICH PIER

The Committee considered a recommendation from the Economy Policy and
Performance Group of 13 March 2008 requesting that the Audit Committee give
consideration to the scrutiny of the Bruichladdich Pier Project.

Decision

To agree to give consideration to the scrutiny of the Bruichladdich Pier project at
the appropriate time.

(Reference: Extract from Minute of the Economy Policy and Performance Group
of 13 March 2008, submitted).

UNAUDITED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2007-2008

The Committee considered the Unaudited 2007/2008 Annual Accounts which
had previously been considered by the Council.

Decision
To note the Unaudited Annual Accounts for 2007/2008.

(Reference: Report by Head of Strategic Finance dated 20 June 2008 and
Unaudited Annual Accounts 2007/2008, submitted)

REPORT ON 2007-2008 INTERNAL CONTROL STATEMENT (ICS)

It is the responsibility of the Council’s senior management to establish an
appropriate and sound system of internal control and to monitor the continuing
effectiveness of that system. Internal Audit have provided an annual overall
assessment of the robustness of the Internal Control System for the financial
year 2007 — 2008 for the Head of the Strategic Finance and this was submitted
for consideration.

Decision

To note the contents of the report and the Draft Internal Control Statement for
2007 — 2008 which maybe updated further when Grant Thornton completes their
review of the Council’s Annual Accounts for 2007 — 2008.

(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 9 June 2008 and Draft
Internal Control Statement 2007 — 2008, tabled)

INTERIM MANAGEMENT REPORT

It was noted that this report was not available and would be considered at a
future meeting of the Committee.

REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT

A report detailing the External Auditor’s follow up review of the Council’s
progress in implementing recommendations from their report entitled “ Review of



16.

17.

Page 5

Internal Audit” issued in May 2007 was before the Committee for consideration.
Decision

It was agreed to continue consideration of this item to the next meeting of the
Committee.

(Reference: Report by Grant Thornton UK LLP, External Auditors, dated 30 May
2008, tabled)

IT SYSTEMS AND APPLICATIONS

It was noted that this report was not available and would be considered at a
future meeting of the Committee.

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE

A report detailing executive summaries and action plans (where applicable) for
finalised audit work was before the Committee for consideration.

Decision

To note the contents of the report and that these will be followed up by Internal
Audit.

(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 19 June 2008, submitted)

The Committee resolved in terms of Section 50A(4) of the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973, to exclude the public for the following item of business on the
grounds that it was likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in
Paragraphs 1 respectively of Part 1 of Schedule 7A to the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973.

18.

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE

A report detailing executive summaries and actions plans (where applicable) for
finalised special investigative work undertaken by Internal Audit was before the
Committee for consideration.

Decision

To note the contents to the report.

(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 19 June 2008, submitted)



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7 Agenda Item 5

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 19 SEPTEMBER 2008

AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF ISSUES FROM JUNE AUDIT COMMITTEE

1. SUMMARY
Equality Impact Assessments — From the External and Internal Audit follow up report
submitted to June 2008 Audit committee Internal Audit was asked to provide this
Committee with an update on the Equality Impact Assessments carried out by
departments. An Equality and Diversity half-yearly report was submitted to SMT on 20
May 2008. A copy of the report is attached with a note of the programme of Equality
Assessments to be carried out.

Supply of library books. — Councillor Simon asked what the arrangements were for the
supply of library books. He wanted to know if the Council used a specialist supplier and
if there were instances when books were obtained from local suppliers. Contact was made
with the Culture and Libraries Manager who supplied a list of the Council’s regular
suppliers of library books with the relevant discount ranges. A copy of the list is
attached..

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1  The contents of this report are noted and approved by the Audit Committee.

3. DETAILS

3.1  Atthe Audit Committee on 27 June 2008 as part of the External and Internal Audit
follow up reports i.e. Follow up of SMT decisions the members requested an
update on the Equality Impact Assessments to be carried out by departments. A
half- yearly report on Equality and Diversity was submitted to the SMT on 20 May
2008 by the Policy Officer, Strategy. The report commented on the progress of
the assessments and the appendix to the report detailed the programme of
assessments and the progress to date. The report and appendix are attached.

3.2 At the same Audit Committee, Councillor Simon asked how the Council sourced
its stock of library books. He wanted to know if the books were sourced through
specialist suppliers or whether they were obtained from local suppliers.

The Culture and Libraries Manager provided Internal Audit with a note of all our
regular suppliers with the relevant discount ranges available. The note is attached
to this report.

4. CONCLUSIONS
The Committee is asked to note the contents of this report.

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1 Policy: None

5.2 Financial: None



Page 8

5.3  Personnel: None
54  Legal: None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact Alex Colligan, Internal Audit Manager (01546
604271).
27" June 2008



Page 9

Item for Noting a)i

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT TEAM

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S UNIT/POLICY AND STRATEGY 20 MAY 2008

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY HALF-YEARLY REPORT TO 31 MARCH 2008

1. SUMMARY

This report covers actions relating to the Equality and Diversity Scheme,
published on 6 December 2006, the Race Equality Scheme that was in place
before this date, the Gender Equality Scheme published in June 2007, and on
Equality Impact Assessments that have been completed. The reporting
period covers 1 October 2007 — 31 March 2008.

2. RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that SMT notes the actions to date and continues to
encourage services to be proactive in pursuing equality in the design and
delivery of services. SMT is also asked to note that the Equality and Diversity
Scheme will be revised to align the various equality duties and produce a
single action plan.

3. UPDATE FOLLOWING SMT MEETING 6 NOVEMBER 2007

SMT requested a review of actions and any gaps in the process with a report
back at the end of March 2008.

3.1 Equality Impact Assessments

The Equality and Diversity Action Plan includes a programme of Equality
Impact Assessments. Internal Audit has agreed to monitor the number of
Equality Impact Assessments that have been undertaken.

3.2 Strategic Board
SMT asked the Strategic Board Customer First and Public Sector Reform to:

e Consider ways to ensure that all employees have an understanding
of the values that underpin equality

e Consider adopting a policy in relation to using inclusive language
across all equality strands

e Consider how to take forward necessary actions, given the limited
resources available in Policy and Strategy.

The Strategic Board has not yet met to consider this. A report will be taken to
the Strategic Board at the next available meeting.



Page 10

Item for Noting a)i

4, EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY SCHEME ACTION PLANS

Services are continuing to monitor customer satisfaction through survey forms
which include age, gender, disability and ethnic origin. A low response to
these has been received and therefore it is not possible to draw any
conclusions from the responses. Employee training in equality matters is
continuing. Managers need to ensure that all employees receive training in
equality matters.

5. EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENTS

Equality Impact Assessments (EqglA) continue to be carried out. The table
attached (Appendix 1) shows the completed assessments for the report
period and those planned to be carried out in the next 6 months.

As a result of carrying out EqIA, some improvements have been made or are
planned. For example, in Operational Services training needs have been
identified for employees at all levels and this will take place during the next
report period; in Planning and Performance individual work plans now include
equality matters; the employee forum Equality Matters has met to consider
communications and property, and taken appropriate action.

Further training sessions on how to use the Equality Impact Assessment will
be held later in the year.

6. ALIGNMENT OF EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY SCHEME

The last Equality Update to SMT (6 November 2007) included a plan to revise
the Scheme by 1 April 2008 to align the action plans to the same timetable
and make reporting easier. Due to unforeseen priorities this revision has not
been carried out. The review will be completed this year instead.

The new single Commission for Equality and Human Rights was set up on 1
October 2007 and has produced a single Equality and Diversity Scheme. The
Commission has recommended that single equality schemes can be
produced as long as actions are “levelled up” so that all equality strands meet
the highest requirements of any one equality strand.

When the revised Equality Scheme is produced, actions will be put onto the
performance management system, Pyramid.

7. CONCLUSION

Progress is being made in carrying out the equality action plan and this should
continue. The Equality and Diversity Scheme and Action Plans will be revised
to align the various equality duties and ensure links to the Corporate Plan.

For further details, contact:
Jennifer Swanson, Policy Officer (Strategy), Chief Executive’s Unit
jennifer.swanson@arqyll-bute.gov.uk Tel. 01546 604298




Page 11

APPENDIX 1

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENTS

Equality Impact Assessments carried out between 1 October 2007 — 31

March 2008
Department Assessment Completed | Improvements /
Adjustments
Corporate Non Domestic | January — Non-Domestic Rates and
Services: ICT and Rates February Council Tax: ‘modifications
Financial Creditors 2008 implemented to improve
Services Payments communications with
« Procurement Equality Target Groups'.
- Payroll Creditors Payments, Payroll
« ICT Services and ICT Services: none.
Community Education for January
Services: Sustainable 2008
Education Development
Development DS01: Kilmory January
Services: Home Farm 2008
Planning Feasibility Study
DSO05: December
Campbeltown 2007
Area for Action
DS06: Ardrishaig | December
Area for Action 2007
DS04:
Employability Unit | March 2008
activities
Development DS07: Roads | January
Services: Safety Education | 2008
Transportation
and Infrastructure




Page 12

Equality Impact Assessments planned for 1 April — 30 September 2008

Department Assessment Timetable | Comments
Chief Exec’s Unit: |+ Health and Safety | 2008/09
Personnel Personnel 2009/10
- Training and 2010/11
Management
Services
Chief Exec’s Unit: |« BV Review of EQIA will be carried out for

Strategic Finance

Strategic Finance —
various actions

various actions included in
action plan from BV Review
of Strategic Finance

Corporate: ICT - Benefits July 2008 | Postponed til July due to
and Financial Administration additional pressures relating
Services to Business Continuity
Planning
Sundry Debtors: tender for
new debtors system
underway; EqlA postponed
until process complete
Community: « Integrated 31/03/08 | Awaiting Govt guidance on
Planning and Children’s Service LHS before completing EqlA
Performance Plan 2008-2011 2008/09
Best Value
Review of Social
Work Admin
« Local Housing
Strategy
Community: « Literacy May 2008
Education Numeracy
Development: DS03: European Unit | 30/06/08
Planning activities
DS09: Core Path 28/02/09
Plan
Development: DS08: Public/School | 30/06/08
Transportation Transport provision
and Infrastructure
Operational: + Streetscene 30/04/08
Roads and Fortnightly 30/04/08
Amenity Services Refuse Collection
Recycling / Waste | 31/07/08
Minimisation
Refuse Collection | 31/07/08




Page 13

Department Assessment Timetable | Comments
Operational: School Meals 31/01/08
Facility Services Provision

Health and Safety | 31/01/08

Policy

Hungry4Success | 31/03/08

Leisure and 31/07/08

Sports provision

Charging Policy 31/12/08




Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15

Argyll and Bute Library Service: Suppliers

Main Supplier — discount in place of 20%

Holt Jackson Book Company Limited (Main Library Supplier)

Preston Road, Lytham, Lancashire FY8 5AX

Local Booksellers — discount range 10-15%

Bookpoint,
147 Argyll Street, Dunoon, PA23 7DD

Printpoint,
15 Watergate, Rothesay, Isle of Bute

Bookworms, East Clyde Street, Helensburgh.

Argyll Book Centre,
Unit 2, Lorne Street, Lochgiphead.

K. Martin, Booksellers,
14 Main Street, Campbeltown.

Loch Fyne Gallery, Tarbert

Specialist Suppliers — discount range 10-25%

Promotional Books Limited,
Unit 8, 25 Black Moor Road, Ebblake Industrial Estate,
Verwood, Dorset, BH31 6BE

Cadmus Books,
Sidlaw, Campmuir, Coupar Angus, Blairgowrie,
Perthshire, PH13 9JF

Bright Books,
Shaw House, Shawclough Road, Rochdale,
Lancashire, OL12 6ND

Grant and Cutler Ltd.,
55-57 Great Marlborough Street, London, W1F 7AY

Gaelic Books Council,
22 Mansfield Street, Glasgow, G11 5QP

(Used weekly)

(Frequently)
(Occasionally)

(Occasionally)

(Occasionally)

(Occasionally)

(Used Regularly)

(Used regularly)

(Occasionally)

(Frequently)

(Occasionally)



Page 16

Specialist Suppliers of Large Print and Audio Books — discount range 5-
20%

Ulverscroft Large Print Books, (Used regularly)
(Incorporating Isis and Soundings)

The Green, Bradgate Road, Anstey,

Leicestershire, LE7 7FU

Magna Large Print Books, (Used regularly)
Magna House, Long Preston, Skipton,
North Yorkshire, BD23 4ND

BBC Audiobooks, (Used regularly)
St. James House, The Square,
Lower Bristol Road, Bath BA2 3BH

Severn House Large Print Books, (Occasionally)
Bridge End Farm, Long Preston,
Skipton, North Yorkshire, BD23 4NN

Oakhill Publishing Limited, (Occasionally)
PO Box 3855, Bath, BA1 3WW

W. F. Howes Ltd (Used regularly)
Unit 4

Reasby Business Park

Gaddesby Lane

Reasby

Leicester

LE7 4YH

Kerry Corbett
5/8/08



Page 17 Agenda Item 6

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 19 SEPTEMBER 2008

PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2008 - 2009

1. SUMMARY

An interim progress report has been prepared covering the audit work performed by
Internal Audit up to the 22nd of August 2008. The objective of the report is to advise
members of the progress of the Annual Audit Plan. (See Appendix 1).

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Audit Committee is asked to approve the progress made with the Annual
Audit Plan for 2008 - 2009.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1  The progress report contained in Appendix 1 lists the audits scheduled for the
financial year 2008 —2009, and are ordered by section and level of completion.

3.2  Asatthe 22nd of August 2008, of 19 core financial systems audits set out in the
audit plan presented on the 27" of March 2008, 4 have been completed. Of the
remaining 15 audits 2 have been started.

3.3  Of 15 non-financial audit areas set out in the audit plan of the 27" of March
2008, 1 audit area has been completed as at the 22nd of August 2008. Of the
remaining 14 audits, 3 are currently ongoing.

3.4  One hundred direct audit days were set aside in the annual audit plan for Special
Investigations / Contingency work. As at the 22" of August 2008, no time has
been expended on these areas.

3.5 Appendix 1 shows that only 175 audit days have been expended on the audits.
The main reason for this is the secondment of an Internal Audit Manager and the
resignation of one of the Trainee Accountants in June 2008.

With the return of the Internal Audit Manager, the appointment of a new Trainee
Accountant and the retention of 2 Contract Auditors it is anticipated the annual
audit plan will be completed.

4. SUMMARY OF AUDIT ACTIVITIES FOR 2008 - 2009

4.1 It can be reported that Internal Audit continues to make progress with the
Annual Audit Plan. Internal Audit effort has been focused on statutory audit
activities with regard to the financial year end and statutory performance
indicators (SPIs). Current progress with the Internal Audit plan is behind the
performance recorded in 2007/08. However, any sustained shortfall will be met
through the recruitment of an additional contract auditor.

4.2 One of the Trainee Accountants left the Council’s employment in June 2008 and
it is hoped to have a replacement in October 2008. Recruitment for the post will
take place on the 17" of September 2008.



Page 18

CONCLUSION

Progress is being made on audits planned for 2008 —2009.

6. IMPLICATIONS
5.1  Policy: Update on audit plan for 2008 — 09.
5.2 Financial: The audit plan is based on budgeted provision.
5.3  Personnel: None
54  Legal: None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact Alex Colligan, Internal Audit Manager (01546
604271)

Alex Colligan
Internal Audit Manager
28 August 2008



Page 19

APPENDIX 1

Assessment of audit days: 2008-2009 strategic plan

AUDIT WORK SCHEDULE Last Risk ranking Original Revised Estimated| Actual Audit Days Balance
audited Estimated Audit| Audit Days 2008- 2008-09
Days 2008-09 09

Core financial systems

Complete

Creditor Payments 2007 2 15 15 9 6
Tendering Procedures 2007 1 15 15 18 -3
Started

Government & European Grants 2007 1 35 35 23 12
Stocktaking/ Work in Progress 2007 2 25 25 18 7
Cash Income and Banking 2007 2 40 40 5 35
Car Allowances 2007 2 15 15 7 8
Not Started

Budgetary preparation and control 2007 1 15 15 0 15
Capital Accounting 2007 1 15 15 0 15
Capital Contracts 2007 1 15 15 0 15
Contract Hire and Operating Leases 2007 2 15 15 0 15
Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates 2007 2 40 40 0 40
Debtor Accounts 2007 2 15 15 0 15
Purchasing 2007 2 15 15 0 15
Unified Benefits System 2007 2 40 40 0 40
Asset Management 2007 1 40 40 0 40
General Ledger Operations 2007 2 15 15 0 15
Payroll 2007 2 40 40 0 40
Treasury Management 2007 2 15 15 0 15
Payments to Voluntary Bodies (Following the Public Pound) 2007 2 15 15 0 15
Section Total 440 440 80 360
Non-financial Audits

Started

Procurement for Fleet 2005 1 30 30 2 28
Corporate Governance ICS 2007 1 30 30 16 14
Performance Indicators/Single Outcome Agreement 2007 1 52 52 35 17
Health & Safety - 1 30 30 4 26
Not Started

Policy & Strategy - Best Value 2006 1 30 30 0 30
Stress Management Exercise - ? 30 30 0 30
Pre-School Education Provision B 1 30 30 0 30
SW Commissioning & Contracting - 2 30 30 0 30
Transport & Infrastrucutre Grant Funding 2007 1 30 30 0 30
Payroll Processes for Catering - 2 30 30 0 30
Department Risk Plan Testing - 1 30 30 0 30
Recruitment and Retention of Staff 2006 1 20 20 0 20
Computer Audit 2007 2 28 28 0 28
Department Business Continuity Plan Testing 2007 1 30 30 0 30
New Legislation 2007 1 30 30 0 30
Section Total 460 460 57 403
Actual Direct Audit Time 900 900 137 763
Special il igati tingency 100 100 100
Council Wide

Chief Executive's Unit

Community Services

Corporate Services

Development Services

Operational Serivces

Section Total 100 100 0 100
|Other Areas

Follow-up External & Internal Audit Management Letter Points 85 85 30 55
|Risk Assessment, Strategic Plan, Annual Plans 20 20 7 13
|Section Total 105 105 37 68
|TOTAL 1105 1105 175 930




Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21 Agenda ltem 7

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 19 September 2008

EXTERNAL & INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2008 — 2009.

1. SUMMARY

The Internal Audit Annual Plan requires that follow up reviews be conducted for all
audits completed during the prior year. Internal Audit also document the progress made
by departmental management in implementing the recommendations made by both
External Audit and Internal Audit. The current reporting system was introduced and
approved by the Audit Committee in August 2004. Set out below are the results from a
review performed by Internal Audit for recommendations due to be implemented by 30"
June 2008.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1  Appendix 1 is a statistical summary of the 2004/05, 2006/07 and 2007/08 Internal
Audit reports issued prior to June 2008. It details the number of recommendations
to be implemented by the follow up date, the number implemented and those past
their implementation date. The implementation date used for reporting to this
Audit Committee is 30" June 2008. A reference column has been added to provide
a link to Appendix 2, where reasons are given by local management as to why
recommendations have not been implemented by the agreed date. There is an
additional column showing when those actions not yet implemented had been
reported to previous Audit Committees. The same layout has been used for the
follow up of External Audit report recommendations.

3.2 Appendix 1 is split into 2 documents la & 1b. The first document refers to all
reports with recommendations due April to June 2008. The second document lists
action points outstanding from the previous Audit Committees. These are points
that should have been implemented by 31st March 2008 for the last Audit
Committee. The same layout has been used for the reporting of External Audit
report recommendations in Appendices 3 & 4.

3.3 All new external audit reports issued by External Audit to the Council are reported

initially separately to the Audit Committee with their executive summary and
action plan. Thereafter they are included in the summary list for external audit.

4. CONCLUSIONS

Implementation of all recommendations will continue to be monitored by Internal
Audit.



Page 22

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1  Policy: None
5.2 Financial: None
5.3  Personnel: None
54  Legal: None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact Alex Colligan of Internal Audit on (01546 604271)

26 August 2008



Page 23

B8OUBPIAS JUBIOIYNSU|

/8INPaYos puiyag

Ag pauonoe sjuiod

Aq psuonae aq 0} sjuiod

aleq Moday

4 8¢ (04 |B10 L
0 2 ¥ (8002 ABN) 1011U0D) Alelabpng JO Meiney
0 Z 4 (8002 Aen) SO0IAIBS AIUNWWOY - SBOUBMO||Y JBD JO Mainay
0 € € (8002 Ae) S90IAMI9S [euoleladQ - SOOUBMO||Y JBD JO MAIASY
44 I 0 L (2002 Joqwiadaq) sasea] buneladQ R aliH 10BJ1U0D JO MBIASY
0 c g (8002 AeN) Juswabeue)y KiNseal] jo MaInsy
Bieysy Hod - seinpadoid
0 c ¢ (8002 1ndv) Buuspua] - 1pny [eude) Jole|y Jo mainay
0 9 9 (8002 Ae) Seuoyd 9|Iqo[\ JO Malnay
0 6 6 (8002 Arenige4) S|00U9S OAdN JO Malnay
0 14 ¥ (8002 |11dy) S|jauag @ SONUAASY - 9OUBWIOS JO MAIASY
0 L I (£00z aunr) siuelie A Buipjing g Buluue|d Jo mainay
0 ¥ ¥ (2002 1equianon)) uoneolddy Buiuueld jo mainay
K9] 1 1 2 (8002 Atenuer) }IOMBWEIH JuSWabBUEBI ¥SIY JO MaIASY
80/200C
paAladal
ajep uonejuawajdwi 8002 aunr 0g

upny

V | XION3ddVY

800z aun 01 [idy Woi4 ang SUONEpUSWIWIOday Y\ SHoday

Aewwing - dn mojjo4 1oday 1Ipny [euaiu]




Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25

9 | XIAN3ddV

! I 7l 7l [e101
S8V 4 0 4 4 (£002 Jeqwisoa() S9SEdT bulieladQ B olIH 10e1u0) JO MaIADY
2 1 ) c ulwpy juswaebeuepy
e8ia (2002 soquisides) 91SB\\ - S80IMBS Alluswy B SpeoYy JO MaInaY
€3 I I 2 2 (2002 1snbny) £00g Hodsuel] 2iignd g [00YIS JO MaIARY
¥829 Z Z 4 4 (£00z 1oquianoN) SUOISI08(Q 98RIWOY % [19UNOD JO MaIASY
80/200C
1o) L 0 I L (2002 1890100) uoije|siba] MaN JO MalAaYy
£0/9002
GLeld 2 0 [ 4 (5002 11dy) 3p0) [enuspnid 8y} Jo mainay
60/00C
paAladal S99IWwWo)
2ouapIne ajep 800¢ aunp upny
JualoNsu| uonejuawsa|dwi 0€ Aq pauonoe | snoinaid wo.i4 aleq Moday upny
/aINpayos Aq pauonoe sjuiod aq 0} sjuiod Buipuelsing
puiyag 1INS siuiod

351IWWO0Y) 1IpNy SNOIASId WoJ4 BUIpUBISINQD Sjulod




Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27

BAIIN29XJ Q00T Jaqwaydas
e uolsioap Joy Jaded

Jayuny yum pajuasald aq
[IIM [1I2UNOY) 8} JO SIBquIBW
pue saijndIyIp S} INOYHM
10U sI A} Juswaoe|dal pue
apesbdn Aemdi|s jo uondo
w8} Joys a|jgepJoye 1SO\
"[IoUN0D 8y} uo Juswaoidwi
Jo snuo ayj bumynd |esieidde

OV1S 9y}l Jo sawodino

"8bpuq [9A3] Ybly e puny
0} Jou BuipIosp JUBWUIBA0D)
4sinoog 8y Jo Jushs

‘Jey} wouy

Buimo)y suonesidwi Jayjo sy}
pue jeoq Aus} e jo aseyoind
10 ase9| ay} Joj ue|d o) sdays
Buiye) Buspisuod aq pjnoys
[IoUNOD 8Y] JUSWIUIBAOS)
ysmoos ay) Aq paydeooe

aq jou Aew BuIssoId punog

ay) Buipuny 03 sabueyo S92IAISS QU] Ul udye} aq 0} uoljoe uen) ay} Joj uondo abplq
JUBWIUIBA0L) Jaye Alessaoau 8002 1002 [euoneiadQ| 8y} apiosp 0} [1ounod ayy Aq| ays 1eys Aljiqissod sjgeuoseal
suofeJado Jo mainal Jayund|Jaquieideg g| |lequedaq Lg JO Jojoauig|paouawwod aq pjnoys sda)s e Buiaq a1ay) JO M3IA U| IVIYILYIN ¥
‘pauleb sbuiaes ay} Joyuow
0] [1oUNOYD 8y} Joj Alessaoau
Janamoy s} “saulyoew
M3U 8y} Wolj ajgejiene
Sal}l|loe} paoueApe ay) Jo
asn wou} apew aq 0} sbuines
[enuajod ay) Aq 10sU0 aq
Janamoy pjnoys ainjipuadxa
sIy] "sJeah al }xau ay}
Jo} ainjipuadxa 8|qelapisuod
‘suoljepuswwoal 0] [19uUnoY 8y} Bunywwoo
Aue jo uoneuswajdwi sny} ‘uiebe yonw se Bulaq
pue ABajes;s Juud| sdeylad sabieyds aoueusjuiew
"19A se eoe|d uaye) Jou sey [eulajul 8y} Jo uona|dwod yim ‘auoje |ejual 1o}
uonejuswaldwi ay} aye|dwoo 8002 Jabeuelp uo Jno pauled aq o)) Ajjenuue 000‘00L3F Uey} alow
s| ABajesys Juld ayy ybnouyyy| Jeqwedaq LE |800Z dunr 0g Janbayox3g| sI mairal Asuow Joy anjeA Y| Jo} si 1oesjuod Jaidooojoyd ay | IVIYILYIN z
S3ASVIT ONILVHIdO ® JHIH LOVHLNOD 40 M3IATY - V
31va NOILVY 301440 d39INNN
NOILVNV1dX3/LNJNINOD aasiATY INIINTTdINI I19ISNOJS 3N NOILOV d33yoV A3I14ILN3dl SISSANMVIM 3avio NV1d
40 31vda NOILOV

¢ XIAN3ddV




Page 28

"Syjuow Jo
91dno9 1xau ay} uiyym aoe|d
9)E} Sy} Jey) pspusiul sl

) “LINS 0} podau e Bupjiwgns

os|e pjnoys siy] ‘sbuiesw
Jejnbal Jo sueaw Aq
salpoig yum diysiauned ay)
10 sjljouaq 8y} ssasse pue
Jojluow 0] 8NUUOD p|noys
S90IAIBG |eba ‘Malnay
anje/ 1sag saolnieg |eba
ay) wo.y Buisue s)iyauaq
pue sawoo)No a8y} uo J NS

‘pag|dwod

a( 0] 19A sey mainay

an[e 1seg saoinles |eba ay)
woJy BuisLie suoiepuswWOdal

0} Joud op 0} aiinbaJs am S90IAI8G| 0} Jodal jenuue ue Jugns ayj jo uonejuswadwi ay}
yolym saipolg yim bunesw 8002 BAI}08J0Id| PINOYS SOOIAISS DAI}08]J0Id| WOJ) pauleqo sjyauaq ayj Jo
ul Aejap e usaq sey alvy|| J9qoPOLE |800Z Yoie LE | 9 |eba jo peaH 9 |eba Jo peaH 8y [ JUBWISSaSSe pue uoljen|eAd uy IVINILYIN z
dN-MO7T1704 NOISIOAA FILLININOD ® TIONNOD 40 M3INIY - 9
‘Buiuue|d Juswabeue)y
uogJlen sjIouNoD 8yl Yim
uonounluod ur payoeosdde
aq 0} ale S|y} wouy
sjuiod uonoe |euly 8y} Ing
(sBulpjing pue sjooyos awos sojep uonejusws|dwi jeuibuo
Jo} sapuanbal) uoio9||0o S} YIM pulyaq uaje} sey
a)sem JO malnal/suondo S90IAI8S 9SJN0D U0 ¥oBq| YoIym ue|d UOIOy UoiUdAald
Bunuud Janaq) pajuawas|dwi 6002 1002 Ajuswy | ueld uonoe ayy nd 0} sdals|  81SEAA |BUJIBIU| UE paonpoud
usaq sey MIom 8yl Jo yonl|  yodep Le  |dleqwieoeq LE speoy Jo peaH| Buijel mou sijuswabeuel pey saolAleg |euoneladO IVINILVYIN S
Bunesw
31va NOILLY 301440 Y39INNN
NOILVNV1dX3/LNIININOD aasiATY ININITdINI I19ISNOJS 3N NOILOV d33doVv A3idILN3Al SISSANNVIM Ela)2-D) NV1d
40 3lva NOILODV

¢ XIAN3ddV




Page 29

‘pamalnal S| I
usym UonN}ISUOD S,|IounoD
8yl ul pspnoul 8q [|im

sIy} Jo uoniubooay ‘ssadoud
SIy} Jo} |qisuodsal aq pjnom
Aay} yey) buiwiyuod 2002
Alenuep || punoJe siojoaliq

Jabeuey ysiy

wia)sAs Buipiooal ay)

yjim auj| ul seodpjoeld [ewuolul
Bunsixa a1y Buisijew.oy

AQ uonnisuo j1ouNoYH

a3y} yum jueldwod sawodssq
0} pajsanbai aq pjnoys
sjuswedaq ‘slojoaliq
J1ay) pue sjuswuedaq

UjIm sisal uone|siba|

MU pue papuswe

yjim jueljdwod si |1ouno) au}
1By} ainsua 0} Ajljiqisuodsal
8yl jey |lelep p|noys

uonelsiba|

Jo uonejuswadwi ayy Joy
Buiures; wouy pede sassaoold
[ewJoul aAey sjuawliedsp
esald 1y "uone|siba] mau
pue papusawe Bunuawajdwi
Jo} 8oe|d ul sseo0ud [ewlio) e
aAey 0] sjuswiiedap Jo) paau
8y} JO uonNIISUOY [1dUNOY By}

[|E 0] JUSS SEM BAI}IBIIP V| 800Z 4840100 |800Z Y2JBN LE | pUB 90UBUIBAOD uonNUISuUO) [1DUN0D 8yl | ulyum uoiuboosal ou si alay ] IVIYILVYIN l
NOILVISIOTT M3IN 40 M3INTH - D
"S9/IIWIWOD
‘pas|dwod ealy |eo07 a8y} 0} pajussald
aJe syiom Buipjing ayy 8q 0} 8Aey [IM sHoday
99U0 uolejuswa|dwi 0} MIA ‘IoUNOD 8y} JO slaquiswl
e yum passalboud Buiaq ale Ag apew aq 0} aAey |IM
sanss| bupyied Jeo Jawioy Jey} UoISIoap B S| SIY} usy)
ay] ‘alowmog Ul SHI0OM ABajens ay) 01 sebueys Aue
Aynn ongnd pue Aesayioy aq 0} ale alay} §| ‘o|qissod
1e syJom Bunssuibua SEe UOOS Se UoISn|duod "lIoUNOY 8y} 0} BWOdUI JO
[In19 Bulobuo 0y anp Abajeuis e 0] Jybnouq pue palojuow| sso| Jayuny bunoulsal Agalayy
ay} Jo uonejuswadwi [jny A|oso)o si1 Abajeng Bunied ‘palelajeooe 8q 0} spasu
ssaiboud 0} 9|qissod usaq S9JIAIBS|  JeD ayj Jo uoneuswas|dwii 002 Jeqwisydag ul [1Iouno)
10U Sey I 8J8YyM SUOI}B0| 8002 8002 Auswy 1By} 8INsua [|IM Aq pasaibe AbBajeng Bunied

1O Jaquinu e aJe aJay

Jaqwieoe( 62

Alenige4 62

speoy Jo pesH

S99IAI9S AJluswy pue speoy

JeD ay} Jo uonejuswajdw|

IVININVANNA 4

"110dal
[enuue ayy ul papnjoul aq

NOILVNV1dX3/LNJWINOD

3lva
a3siAA

NOILV
LNINITdINI
40 31va

321440
319ISNOdS3Y

NOILOV d3RIOV

a31d1LN3IAl SISSANMVIM

AJIGINNN
NV1d
NOILOV

3avio

¢ XIAN3ddV




Page 30

'800¢ 480100 Jo pus

8y} Ag SIBALIp JuBAS|al ||B 0}
painquisip 8q ||IM 3oogpuey
S JoALIp 8y “sanjiqisuodsal
[BNPIAIPUI UMO

JIBY} pue Wi} UMOP SJoIYaA
‘sjo9j0p Ajiep yooq 6oj

JO swua} ul saijigisuodsal
SJBALIP BY] 1IN0 18S AlJeg|o
[IIM yolym oogpuey s JaALlp
e Jo anss| Buipuadwi ayy Aq
paAjosal g |Im sJosiAledng
ealy Buipiebal sanssi oy |

8002
18qo1oQ Lg
8002 IMdy 0¢

1002
JaqWIBaAoN 0€

sJosinledng
ealy

"3[l§ BI0IYSA [ENPIAIpUl Ue Ul
9S9y} Ulelal pue wio- yoog
pi0o2ay 10840 Adoo an|q

3y} yim Jayjeboy ajoiysa
yoea J0} ploday 10840 pue
%98y 10840Q Alleq s|o1yaA
B S9AI908l 9y Jey} ainsua
pinoys Josinladng ayy

yjuow yoe3 " "yuow yoea
JO pua ay} je Josinladng

8y} 0} pauJnjal pue

w0} pJo2ay 3oayo 199j(Q
Alre@ sjo1ysA ayy 0} payoeye
aq p|noys doys3IopA 8y}

Aq o paubis yoog piodray
1099 SJoAl(Q 8y} jo Adoo
an|q ay} paje|dwoo usaq
sey Jiedal ayj Uaypp ‘¢ ‘Aep
ajelndoidde ayy uo "oN wlio4
}oog pJoday 108j8Q S oAl
ay} bunou Aq papiodal

8Q p|noys s[olysA sy

0} Buiurenad “yo8yd Ajlep ay;
ul punoy asoy} }snf jou pue
‘s10948p |V “Z “A|uo sjoIyaA
1ey} o} Bunejal se pajeal)
pue ajoIyaA yoes ul pauielal
8q p|noys pJ0ooay o8y
10840 Ajle@ seAlQ 8yl 'L

"WJOJ palejal JaALP
10 3[0IYSA B SEM WO} 8y)
Jaylaym 0} Se pasnjuod alom
SI9AIIQ ‘P “1OU 919M PapPI0dal
usaq aABY p|NOYS Yolym
saljus ¢G '¢ ‘a19|dwooul aom
GZ SpJo2al gg 10 "z ‘Buissiw
alem spiodal 3o8yJ 109Je(
Ajre@ sJoAuQ 61740 21 L

VIE3LVYIN

I

NINQV LNJINFOVNVIN 3LSVM - STOIAYUTS ALININ

V 8 SAVOY 40 M3IATY - d

Buiuiely Joy aoe|d ul Apusseaud

NOILVNV1dX3/LNJWINOD

3lva
a3siAA

NOILV
LNINITdINI
40 31va

321440
319ISNOdS3Y

NOILOV d3RIOV

a31d1LN3IAl SISSANMVIM

3avio

AJIGINNN
NV1d
NOILOV

¢ XIAN3ddV




Page 31

‘sjo9loud jeudeo Jolew

paja|dwo9 Ajjuadal uo asoy) Jebeuey ‘MalAal uonedwod
yum Buoje psemioy usye} aq UpNY [eulau| 1sod e jno BulAiied ul yjeuaq
MOU [[IM MBIASY uoia|dwo) 800¢ ,00¢ /edueulioLied 90/5002 40 pus 8y} Je IN0| 8q p|NOM 818y} pue juedyiubis
1s0d @Y1 109(oid sy} Joj S1s09| Jaqwiedeq [lequwieldas og pue Buluue|d| pauIed aq 0} s 109loid sy s| 198[oid Ajlunwwo)
jo uonesiewJoy Buimoljo4| 800z IMdY 0O | 2002 UdJeN LE jJo peaH| jo malnal uoia|dwod jsod | umojaqdwe) ay} Jo }sod 8y IVIH3LVIN |
3d09 TVILNIAN¥d IHL 40 MIIATN - 4
"9AIIN08X ] JOQUIBAON
a2y} 0} Jaded e jussaud 0y ‘g|qissod
pauueld s }| "aANd8X3] a8y} SB UOO0S Se 99)IuwWo) "INo
0} pajuasald aq ueod }l alojaq 8002 Jabeuepy| 8ANOSX3 8Y) 0} papIwIgns| palLIed usaq Jou Sey Sa2IAIS
JUBWNJ0P SIY} UO JNO paLIed| JaqUBAON 0€ | 2002 alnjonyiseqyu]|  aq pinoys el aulgpinb sng Buioddng Joj el
8q 0} ||I}s Sey 3Jom Jayund| 800z [HdY OE [4oqWIBAON Q€ | *® Uollepodsuel | ay) buimalnal Jaded v aulleping 8y) Jo malral Y VI3 LVIN €
2002 LYOdSNVYYL J179Nd ANV TOOHIS 40 M3IA3Y - 3
"ysiui4 pue 3se] Jo 10848
ay} Jo pJodal e Buipinoid
sny} yoog pJooay sJoAL(q
ay} ul Ainp o ob Aay)
awl [enjoe 8y} pJoodal pjnoys
puowo ¥ ybingsus|aH
1 S oAl "Z "oALp 0}
paJinbai sI 8y Yyoiym ui yoam
Aue Jo 10adsau ul paya|dwod|  Alnp L0 Juam JBALP By} |wiy
8Q 0} Y0og pJ02ay SJ9ALQ| By} pJodal jJou pIp puowo ¥
'800Z 12903100 JO pud B Ylm panssi aq pjnoys| ybingsusjaH e s)00g pJooay
8y} AQ sIaALIp 1UBAS|l ||B 0} 8002 Apuspiwliaiul §l UsAs S[oIYsA sJaAalg 8yl "z ‘pere|dwoo
painguisip aq |[IM Yoogpuey|  18qo1o0 L2002 slosinladng|  [1ouno) e aALIp 0] palinbal| sAem|e Jou aie s)eays Apjeem
S JoALIp 8y ‘anoge 99S| 800z [4dy 0g|JequaroN OE ealy ale oym sannelsado ||y 'L s)oog ploosy sJoAuq ‘| IVINILVYIN Z
"9]2I1YaA yoea
10} PJO23J BWIIUMOP/}03}apP
In} e apiaod [|im siy L
31va NOILVY 301440 Y39INNN
NOILVNV1dX3/LNJNINOD aasiATY INIINTTdINI I19ISNOJS 3N NOILOV d33yoV A3I14ILN3dl SISSANMVIM 3avio NV1d
40 3lva NOILODV

¢ XIAN3ddV




Page 32

‘lenosdde

S}l JO} UoljBpUBWILLIODA

B yum sspiuwod

1pny ayy o) buiob alojaq
Buneaw 1xau syl 18 OINY

ay} Aq panoidde aqg pjnoys
yoiym Abejens jusweabeuely

‘lencidde pue malaal

‘leanoidde Jo) eapiwwo)
upny ay} 0} payuasaud
pue sH)7 |eluswpedap

3SIY pue juswalels 92UBUISN0D) 10} OINY 1Xau ay) 0} ob Jo} yiomawely) Bunetado ue
Aoljod juswabeuely pue sadiAIeS| [|IM pue paledald usaq aAey| Jay0 OS|e |IM SIY} sjuswliedap
3SIY mau e Buimainal 8002 JM1BIo0WS(J| SJUSWNO0op Alessadau ay) se 0} panss| pue pasijeul} aq
Ajuaiino ale Ny 9yl| Jeqwiedeq 800z aunr 0 Jo peaH| uone|dwod 0} 8sojo sIsiyl| 0} ale sainpadolud Bunesadpo IVIS3LYIN L
MHOMINVHA LNFJINIOVNVIN MSIH FHL 40 M3IIATN - 07
suJnjas Buisealoul N
1002 SOOIAJIBG|  JO wie ay) yum suonenbal| wnuwiuiw je suinjal pasealoul
"JUBWIUIBA0S) YSI}I09S ay) 2002 Jaquweydasg 0o¢ juswdojana( mau Jo 1disoal uodn Jo} Ayunpuoddo ue si alay |
wouy suonenbay JuswisaAu|| Jaqwadaqg |[/200Z Yo2IelN LE - Jlabeue pamalnal 8q 0} SI0JedIpull  “SuJnjaJ JUBWISSAUI S}Ol]Sal
ayy bunieme ||3s ale S\ 800Z BUNr O |900Z dunr 0 adueul4 ABajel)s Juswisanul suopeywi| Abajesis bunsixg IVIHILVIN Gl
31va NOILLY 301440 d3IgINNN
NOILVNV1dX3/LNIININOD aasiATY ININITdINI I19ISNOJS 3N NOILOV d33doVv A3idILN3Al SISSANNVIM Ela)2-D) NV1d
40 31vda NOILDV

¢ XIAN3ddV




Page 33

V € XIAN3ddV

0 0 0 [elo ]
PaAIa9a1 90USpIAS ajep uonejuawajduwi aun A
usioynsu| Mnuvm:..w:_om mE__On_ ) uomwmwm mn_..oww_:n_ou upnv
/31NP3YIS pulysg i i i i

800z aunp 0} [dy Woi4 ang SUONEpUSWIWIOday Y\ SHoday JIpny [euiaixg

Aewwing - dn mojjo4 Hoday 1pny [eualxg




Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35

1I11S sjuiod

2 | g g [eol]
19 L 0 L L 10BJUOYD JBWOISN) Janag ybnoiyl sediA1eg Jewoisn) buinoidw)
0 I b 5 slaquis|\ 0} Hoday [euld - IPNY G0/#002
4% 1 0 1 1 a]dodad J9p|O 10} S82IAIBS a1e)) Ajunwwod Buluoissiwwo?)
CEEINNNT )
vawwM.o”M”uEm e1ep uopejuswajduwy aun w% % auoljoe m:o_n_mﬂ:‘xEE 1pn
jusnsuy| £q pauonoe sjuiod r 0€ Aq pauoly Inaid 4 Hpny
/3INPaYIS pulysg 8q 0} sjulod Buipueisino

g € XIAN3ddV

3S1IWWO0Y) 1IpNy SNOIASId WoJ4 BUIpUBISINQD Sjulod



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



aq AbBsjesns siy) ey
pajonJisul weas) juswabeuew
olbajesis ay| ‘paniwgns ued
uoljoR 8y} YjiMm aouepioode

Ul S2IAJBS [IDUNOD

JUBAB|l ||B SSOIOE 81jud0
90IAJBS J8WO0}SNI N0 |0l

‘Juswainsesw aduewopad
anosdwi pjnoys s[1ouno)
"¥oeqpaos} Jo asnh Japaq

aYew pue 821A18s uo uojuido
,SJawoisnd yolessal Aayy
Moy aAoldwi pjnoys s|iouno)
*AIoAI|Bp 921AI8S SISO 0)

Page 37

0} ue|d uoioe pasinal e aalbe 800Z UoJe|N LE | ©dueulan0D [BJ3USD SI SIY} Se sjuswanoidu
0} pue AbBajels Jawo}snd mau 100z 1snbny L¢| pue saainIeg 92IAIS Jawo)sno abeuew
B 9sJopus 0} g00Z Aew ul 5002 oneIoowag 0] swwelbouid e ansind Ajpanoe
Bunesw syl e paalbe j1ouno)| goOZ 1890100 | Jeqwiada( LE 10 peaH V/N 0] JILIWIOD 0} SPaau [Iouno) WNIa3an l
1OVINOD ¥3INO1SND ¥31139 HONOYHL SIIJIANYAS JIINOLSND ONIAOHdINI ANVILOIS 1IdNVv - 9
‘g|qissod
S| uonejuawaldwi [N} 81ojaq
waysAs Joydepe pajelbajul
8y} ein pouad yuow 881y}
B JBAO pa}sa} 8q 0} alinbal
Aayy aoe(d ul ale swa)sAs
OM] 84} 80UQ "600C YoleN
s L€ 10} JUBWILIBAOD USIHOOS
2yl Aq 19s 106.e) |RUONIEU BY)
199w ||Im Aay) yeyy pajesipul
sey puejybiH SHN "e2e|d ul "JUSSU0D
J0u WaysAs SHN JusjeAinbg ule}qo 0} Juswsalinbai ayy
‘8002 Jequieosa(g Buipnjoul ‘yjeay pue Buisnoy
<L € —1snBny usamjaq saolyjo ‘}IOM [BIDOS SSOJOB S9DIAISS O}
[le ssoJoe pajuswajdwi ‘pajenobau| ssaooe a|geus 0} Juswabuele
aq ||Im pue (ssassy ale)) 6002 100Z AInp L | aJen pajelbayu] Bulaq ainjoniiseljul Burieys uonewJioyul
aoe|d ul wesAs |IDuno)|  eunp 40€ G00Z |Udy o€ JO peaH 1] "@oe[d ul uoisiaA Jaded Jusws|dwi pinoys s1aolo WNIa3an Z
37d03d ¥3d70 J0d SIDIAYTS FHVI ALINNININOD ONINOISSININOD - ANVTLOIS 1ldNVv - Vv
3a1va DOy ¥391440 H3SNNN
NOILVNV1dX3/LNIWNINOD aasiAy ININITdINI 379ISNOJS Y NOILOV d33yoVv A3I4ILN3Al SISSINMVIM 3avio NV1d
40 31va NOILOV

¥ XIAN3ddV




Page 38

'800Z uwnne Burouawwoo
SIY} @Aalyoe 0} padojaasp
Buieq sI swwesboud

B pue Jejs ||e 0} sjuawlledsp
ybnouy} papeosed

NOILVNV1dX3/LNJWINOD

ilva
a3SIATY

NOILV
LININITdINI
40 31va

AJ321440

319ISNOdS3d

NOILOV d33HOV

a31dILNIdl SISSIANMVIM

3avio

AJIGINNN
NV1d
NOILOV

¥ XIAN3ddV




Page 39 Agenda Item 8

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 19 SEPTEMBER 2008

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 2008 - 2009

1. SUMMARY
The Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government (the Code) issued by
CIPFA in 2000 sets out good practice in delivering internal audit services. The Code was
revised in 2006 and Grant Thornton UK LLP, in May 2007 carried out a Code
compliance review resulting in a report. One resultant recommendation required that
internal audit reports be reported to the Audit Committee. Attached are report summaries
and action plans from recent audits to be submitted to the September Audit Committee.
See Appendix 1.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1  Set out below and in the attached Appendix is the Executive Summaries and
Action Plans where applicable from finalised audit work. The Action Plans detail
only those recommendations where Internal Audit in agreement with management
have classified the finding either Fundamental or Material. Therefore Minor
findings and recommendations have been removed. The contents of this report will
therefore complement the External & Internal Audit Follow Up report provided to
the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

3.2 Three final reports have been completed in this reporting period:
e The reports for both the Social Work Review and the Review of Creditors
are attached.
e The third report, the Review of Tendering Procedures — Argyll Air
Services, will be presented to the Audit Committee in December
accompanied by a report from Grant Thornton UK LLP.

4. CONCLUSIONS

The Audit Committee is requested to note the contents of this report.

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1  Policy: None
5.2 Financial: None
5.3  Personnel: None
54  Legal: None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact Alex Colligan, Internal Audit Manager (01546
604271).
28th August 2008



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41

Community Services Department: Review of Social Work Services

Internal Audit Report June 2008

BACKGROUND

This report has been prepared as a result of the Internal Audit review of the
Social Work Services Review as part of the 2007/08 Internal Audit
programme.

A report to the Council on 9 February 2006 highlighted significant unmet cost
pressures on the Social Work budget for 2006/07. The members approved a
scrutiny review of the Social Work Services.

As part of this scrutiny review, Brodies LLP and Hope Consultancy were
appointed in May 2006 to carry out a review on a joint basis. A report was
issued in September 2006, recommending changes in policy, practice,
management arrangements and budget configuration.

As a result of our Audit work, findings were generated. These findings were
subsequently discussed with management and a report produced.

SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS

Our initial audit work was carried out on a desktop review basis, obtaining a
copy of the Brodies/Hope Consultancy report, checking that all of the
recommendations therein were incorporated in the implementation plan.
Thereafter we checked that the report and implementation plan had been
formally approved by the Council and a procedure implemented for the plan to
be reviewed and updated on a two weekly basis by the Departmental
Management Team, with progress being reported to members on a half yearly
basis.

The Brodies/Hope Consultancy report prefaced their detailed
recommendations with the identification of two issues of genuine concern with
regard to the provision of Free Personal Care as follows:

o ‘... by far the most important is the level of unmet need...’
e ‘the second issue...is one of reputation management’

These two issues were not directly cross referenced to the Implementation
Plan but were of underlying significance due to the Ombudsman’s findings
against Argyll and Bute Council in November 2006 for failing to provide Free
Personal Care in a specific case.

A judicial review in October 2007 found in the Council’s favour, in that they did
not need to pay for the provision of Free Personal Care in this particular case,
where the care had not been provided by the local authority.



Page 42

A subsequent Free Personal Care paper to the Executive, on 15 November
2007, noted that ‘the present figure stands at 52 (clients waiting for community
based packages) which is a matter of concern as the home care budget is
fully committed...” Accordingly, the Executive decided to refer this matter to
the Social Affairs Policy and Performance Group ("SAPPG”), and to request
‘that this matter is given high priority within the Policy Performance procedure
given the high profile of both the political and financial issues involved.’

The SAPPG at their meeting on 14 January 2008 deferred consideration of
the Free Personal Care position until June and it is not clear that the
reputation management issue has been specifically addressed.

In the interim, the sensitivity of the issue has been decreased with the
publication, on 27 April 2008, of the Sutherland review. This highlighted rising
costs and a funding shortfall in line with the country’s ageing population.
However, in response to this report, the Scottish Government have agreed to
provide additional funding of £40million, and further consultation is anticipated
with individual Council leaders.

Our subsequent review of the SWIA report and Performance Inspection
Improvement Plan focussed on the three areas which had been identified as
weak:

e Impact on adults, carers, children and young people who use services
e Delivery of Key Processes
e Leadership and Direction

We are satisfied that the Performance Inspection Improvement Plan
addresses the weaknesses in each of these areas with:

e The implementation of a systematic and comprehensive approach to the
assessment and management of risk

e Appropriate shared access to social work assessment and electronic case
records

e The development of a comprehensive range of leaflets about social work
services

¢ A need to sustain commitment to change and continuous improvement

e A more robust communication approach between senior managers and
staff

It is recognised that in addition to the Social Work restructuring exercise there
have been changes to staff contracts under the Single Status arrangements.
There is therefore still a settling in period for all these changes, and despite
the additional contact and consultation there are still likely to be staff members
whose comments may not reflect the generally positive feedback that has
been associated with the changes implemented.



Page 43

Argyll

seBute

COUNCIL

Internal Audit Report
Corporate Services Department
Interim Audit: Review of Creditors

June 2008



41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Page 44

SUMMARY

The following table represents the ICQ question responses from the Creditors
Supervisor.

ANSWERS

No of questions Yes No Not responsible

18 8 3 7

Explanation and/or evidence was provided to support 8 of the 8 questions
answered with yes.

The 3 questions that had no as the answer were in relation to the system
being registered with the Information Commissioner and some data protection
issues. The Creditors Supervisor is not responsible for this area therefore had
no knowledge of these requirements. All 3 questions were changed to a ‘yes’
after consultation with the Data Protection and Information Security
Administrator.

The 7 questions that the Creditors Supervisor was not responsible for related
to the departments involvement in the process. This will be looked at when
carrying out the full audit in 2009/10.

The auditor is satisfied that the section has answered the ICQ in an
appropriate manner and no significant areas of weakness were found.

An Action Plan has not been produced for this audit however the following
minor areas will be analysed in more detail within the full audit in 2009/10:

e procedure manual being brought up to date and linking with the Oracle
User Manual

e old server retention period

e erroneous payments levels



Page 45 Agenda ltem 9

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 19 SEPTEMBER 2008

AUDIT SCOTLAND REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 2008 - 2009

1. SUMMARY
The Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government (the Code) issued by
CIPFA in 2000 sets out good practice in delivering internal audit services. The Code was
revised in 2006 and Grant Thornton UK LLP, in May 2007 carried out a Code
compliance review resulting in a report. One resultant recommendation required that
external audit reports (including Audit Scotland reports) be reported to the Audit
Committee.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1  Setout below is a list of reports published by Audit Scotland in 2007/08 and
2008/09.
e Sustainable Waste Management
A review of Free Personal & Nursing Care
Overview of Local Authority Audits
Improving the School Estate
National Fraud Initiative in Scotland 2006/07 and
Review of Major Capital Projects in Scotland — How Government Works.

The report summaries, key findings and recommendations from the above reports
are attached for your review.

3.2 Internal Audit will undertake further scrutiny on 3 of the Audit Scotland reports:

e Sustainable Waste Management:
e A review of Free Personal & Nursing Care: and
e Improving the School Estate.

A report will be prepared for the Audit Committee by the end of the financial year
detailing the level of Council compliance with the key findings and
recommendations set out in these reports.

3.3 Inrespect of the remaining 3 reports, Internal Audit is presently co-ordinating the
Council response to the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 2008 — 09. As part of this
responsibility Internal Audit will provide progress reports to the Audit Committee
and Strategic Management Team (SMT), as the exercise evolves. The key
messages and recommendations outlined in the Review of Major Capital Projects
in Scotland reflect the future aspirations of the Council regarding capital projects.
The Overview of Local Authority Audit key messages will aid audit plan
development.



Page 46

4. CONCLUSIONS

The reports are submitted to the Audit Committee for consideration.

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1 Policy: None
5.2 Financial: None
5.3 Personnel: None
54  Legal: None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604271).
9 September 2008



Page 47

COTLAND

S

=
a
-

S




Ice

>
—
©
%
®
O
i)

IS a vita

Waste management




About the study

1. Collecting household waste is a vital
and universal household service. It is
unique among council services in being
provided to all homes on a weekly
basis. The Accounts Commission last
reviewed councils’ waste management
services in 2000 in its report
Benchmarking Refuse Collection. Since
then, there have been major changes in
waste management, driven mainly by
the European Union Landfill Directive
1999 ('the Landfill Directive’) which sets
targets for all member states to reduce
the amount of biodegradable municipal
waste disposed to landfill.

2. The overall aim of the study is to
review the work of councils, the Scottish
Environment Protection Agency (SEPA)
and the Scottish Executive in reducing
the amount of waste being sent to
landfill and to make recommendations
to improve the economy; efficiency and
effectiveness of waste management. In
particular, the study seeks to answer the
following questions:

* What progress has been made
in developing sustainable waste
management?

* Has the investment to date from
the Strategic Waste Fund (SWF)
achieved value for money in
increasing rates of recycling?

* \What changes are required to
meet the Landfill Directive (and
how much will they cost)?

* Are the Executive, councils and
SEPA in a position to deliver the
changes required?

3. The study has been undertaken as
a single exercise covering councils,
SEPA and the Scottish Executive.
The study also draws on statutory
performance indicator information,
which includes the collection of
audited information on the amount of
waste recycled by each council. There
were four main strands to the study:

* Desk research and data analysis

— drawing on existing data sources .

= Significant pr

Page 49

to collect national and international
information and reviewing
documentation.

* Questionnaires — to gather
information from councils on
the cost of waste management
services and other issues relating
to waste management.

* Fieldwork visits to six councils
(Clackmannanshire, Dundee City,
Glasgow City, Highland, Perth and
Kinross and South Lanarkshire)
including structured interviews
with senior managers and
practitioners and visits to waste
management facilities.

* Interviews with key officers and
waste practitioners including the
Executive, SEPA, the Scottish
Waste Awareness Group (SWAG),
REMADE, community groups
and the waste industry.

Key messages

rogress, as been _
made in meeting interim recycllng
targets butincreasing the =
recycling rate further will provrde
great challenges. investment by
the Executive via the Strategic
Waste Fund has helped councils
increase the percentage of
municipal waste which is recycled
and composted from seven per
~centin 2001/02 to 25 per cent in
. 2005/06. The system offenng the
~best value for money will depend
upon the level of recycling '
requrred Cc}mmgled collections
appear {0 achieve higher recychng
‘ rates (Part 3). -

® In contrast 10 the progress on
recycling; the slow progress

v dependrrig on the choices made
- between recychng and residual

Summary 3

in developing residual waste

4' - treatment facilities means there
. sa srgnlfrcant risk that the
' Landfrll Directive targets may not

be met In particular, early delays

.~ and a lack of organisational

capacity within councils and the

- Exectitive to deliver change have
_ slowed progress. This will miake

it difficult fo burld the resndua
vaste treatment facmtres -
e 'urred to achreve thé’ Landfrll -

waste treatment (Part 5)

Councils, the Scottish

v Govemment and-other agencres :

need to work more effectively
together to make rapid progress

_in waste minimisation, recycling

and waste treatment to achieve
the Langfill Directive targets.
‘Thereis an urgent need to

build organisational capacity.
within councils and: the Scottlsh

_ Government to achieve this. .
' Councrls,_vSEPA and the Scottrsh .
~ Government should consider

ways in which they can work - with
the waste industry and others

1o deliver the waste treatment

facilities required to achieve the
Landfill Directive targets (Part 6).



@©
wn
@®©
O
)
i

IS

-

lan should be publ

ion p

matter of urgency

An act




42

Recommendations for the Scottish
Government

175. The Scottish Government should
monitor the progress of its waste
reduction plan and report annually on
the progress being made in halting
waste growth.

176. The Scottish Government and
its agencies should look at further
opportunities to develop secure,
sustainable long-term markets to
accommodate the planned increases
in recycling.

177 The Scottish Government should
publish procurement timetables for alf
major waste projects.

178. The Scottish Government should
examine ways of reducing the barriers
to entry into the market to ensure
that there is adequate competition for
residual waste ireatment contracts.

Recommendations for councils

179. To measure progress with
waste management initiatives
councils should undertake regular
waste analyses, particularly where
new recycling or home composting
services are being introduced.

180. Councils across Scotland should
work together to standardise the type
of containers they use and adopt

a common colour coding system
across Scotland.

181. Councils should ensure that
current recycling systems offer

best value by conducting option
appraisals before extending recycling
schemes. Option appraisals should
include market testing as a way of
demonstrating best value.

182. Councils should ensure that
they know the final destination of
recyclables sold to intermediaries.

183. Councils should examine the
benefits of setting up consortia to
market their recyclables.

Page 51

Recommendations for the Scottish
Government and councils

184. The Scottish Government and
councils should undertake research

to assess the contribution that direct
charging for waste management could
make to increasing recycling and
waste reduction.

185. The Scottish Government and
councils should continue to support
community recycling, strengthen the
framework in which they operate and
build capacity by providing long-term
funding for successful groups. This
could be achieved through service
level agreements and by encouraging
partnerships with councils and the
private sector.

186. The Scottish Government and
councils should work together with
the Scottish Waste Awareness

Group to develop a programme to
encourage householders to use home
composting.

187. The Scottish Government and
councils should undertake a technical
evaluation of kerbside recycling
systems to identify the most cost-
effective systems to achieve the levels
of recycling required to meet the
Landfill Directive targets.

188. The Scottish Government should
encourage councils to adopt a more
consistent approach to recycling using
a small number of ‘best practice’
schemes.

189. The Scottish Government and
councils should work together to
reach a decision on the leve! of
recycling and the residual waste
treatment facilities required to achieve
the 2010, 2013 and 2020 Landfill
Directive targets. An action plan
showing the key milestones in this
process should be published as a
matter of urgency.

190. The Scottish Government

and councils should review their
staffing arrangements for delivering
sustainable waste management to
ensure they are fit for purpose.

191. The Scottish Government and
councils should ensure that the
national planning framework is used
effectively to minimise planning delay
in the provision of new facilities.

192. The Scottish Government

and councils should look at ways

of encouraging informed public
debate on the options for meeting
Landfill Directive targets, including
the requirement for facilities to treat
residual waste.

193. The Scottish Government should
work in partnership with councils,
SEPA and other agencies to ensure
the effective procurement of residual
waste facilities including:

s setting up a recognised pool of
staff with procurement expertise
to ensure that expertise gained
in early projects can be usefully
employed in later procurement
exercises

e ensure that the lessons learned
from completed projects are
passed on

¢ coordinating the procurement
of facilities for the treatment of
residual waste.

194. To facilitate the progress of
residual waste treatment facilities
councils and the Scottish Government
should make clear to the public the
long-term benefits of technologies

for the treatment of residual waste,
including energy from waste.



COTLAND

S

=
a
)




Page 53

Part 1. Summary

Background

1. In 1997 the UK government set up a Royal Commission to examine the options for a sustainable
system of funding for long-term care for older people in the UK, both in their own homes and in other
settings. One of the Royal Commission’s main recommendations was to split the costs of long-term
care between living costs, housing costs and personal care and make the last free at the point of
delivery after assessment." It also recommended that personal and nursing care should be paid for

through general taxation.

2. In 2001 the Scottish Executive announced its decision to implement free personal and nursing
care (FPNC) for people aged 65 years and over, and free nursing care in care homes for people of
all ages. The key aim of the policy is to ‘remove current discrimination against older people who
have chronic or degenerative illnesses and need personal care’. It is intended to bring their care in
line with medical and nursing care in the NHS where the principle of free care based on need is

almost universally applied and accepted.?

3. FPNC was implemented from July 2002, through the Community Care and Health (Scotland)
Act 2002. The Scottish Executive provided an additional allocation of £250 million to councils to
support this for 2002/03 and 2003/04, with a further £300 million for 2004/05 and 2005/06. From
2006/07, additional funding has been included as part of councils’ general revenue grant. This
amounted to £162 million in 2006/07 and £169 million in 2007/08.> The UK government and the
Welsh Assembly decided to implement free nursing care only in England and Wales on the grounds

of cost.* Since then, the Welsh Assembly has introduced a more heavily subsidised personal care

service for people of all ages.

4. Councils lead the implementation of free personal care for older people living at home and FPNC for
those living in care homes. They work jointly with health, housing and other support services and
providers in planning and delivering FPNC. Councils deliver some of the services directly but also

commission personal and nursing care from a range of private and voluntary sector providers.

5. By March 2007 around 72,000 older people in Scotland were receiving personal care services free

of charge. Since July 2002, the number of older people:

» receiving public funding for personal care at home increased from 27,337 to 41,386. This

includes people who prior to FPNC would have been paying for their own personal care through

private contractual arrangements

' With respect to old age: Long Term Care - Rights and Responsibilities, Royat Commission on long term care, March 1999.
? Fair Care for Older People, Care Development Group, September 2001.

3 Scottish Parliamentary question S2W-15353
* The NHS Plan: The Govemnment's Response to the Royal Commission on Long Term Care, Department of Health, January 2000.



Page 54

« living in care homes who are contributing to their own accommodation and living costs and who

receive free personal care has increased from 7,680 to 9,361

» living in care homes who are fully publicly funded has reduced slightly from 24,569 to
22,234(Exhibit 1).° °

Exhibit 1
Total number of people receiving free personal care, July 2002 — March 2007
The number of older people receiving free personal care has risen since the policy was introduced

45000
40000
35000
30000
25000
20000
15000
10000

5000

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07

@ No. of older people who contribute to their own care home costs receiving FPC
@ No. of older people whose care home place is funded by the councit and receive FPC

O No. of older people receiving FPC at home

Note: We have assumed that all older people living in care homes who are fully publicly funded by the council are receiving free
personal care.

Sources: Scottish Executive Statistics Release on Free Personal and Nursing Care Scotland 2002-2006; unpublished Scottish
Executive data for 2006/07

6. Although there is an increase in the number-of older people receiving public funding for personal
care across Scotland, there is variation among councils in the percentage of older people receiving
this (Exhibit 2). However, this is not a guide to the level of service which individuals are receiving as

a range of care packages are in place.

5 Scottish Executive Statistics Release on Free Personal and Nursing Care Scotfand 2002-2006; Accounts Commission statutory
erformance indicators, December 2007.
These are lower income older people whose care home costs have always been fuily funded by public funds.

2



Page 55

Exhibit 2

Percentage of older people receiving free personal care, by council, 2005/06

The percentage of older people receiving free personal care ranges from just under seven per cent to just
over 12.5 per cent in different council areas

Aberdeen City
Aberdeenshire
Angus
Argyll & Bute
Clackmannanshire
Dumfries & Galloway
Dundee City
East Ayrshire
East Dunbartonshire
East Lothian
East Renfrewshire
Edinburgh, City of
Eilean Siar
Falkirk
Fife
Glasgow City
Highland
Inverclyde
Midlothian
Moray
North Ayrshire
North Lanarkshire
Orkney Islands
Perth & Kinross
Renfrewshire
Scottish Borders
Shetland Islands
South Ayrshire
South Lanarkshire
Stirling

West Dunbartonshire

West Lothian

¥ T ¥

0% 1% 2% 3% 4% 5% 6% 7% 8% 9% 10% 1%  12% 13% 14%

1 Percentage of older people receiving free personal care in each council ‘

Note: The number at the end of each bar refers to the total number of older people aged 65 and over living in the council area. We
have assumed that all older people living in care homes who are fully publicly funded by the council are receiving free personat care.

Sources: GRO(S) and Scottish Executive




Page 56

7. Two-thirds of older people in care homes who were receiving free personal care by 2007, were also

receiving free nursing care.”

Key messages

« The financial memorandum set out in the Community Care and Health (Scotland) Act 2002 does not provide a
robust and comprehensive assessment of the financial implications and risks of introducing FPNC. This was also

raised by the Scottish Parliament’s Health and Community Care Committee when it scrutinised the initial Bill.

e  Scottish ministers made the decision to introduce FPNC early in 2001. This then set the Scottish Executive
challenging timescales for developing the policy but it achieved its deadline. All councils were successful in

putting in place systems to implement and deliver the policy from 1 July 2002.

» FPNC was introduced at a time of other significant changes and developments in health and social care. This,

combined with a lack of intended outcome measures, makes it difficult to evaluate the impact of the policy in

isolation from other changes.

s  Ambiguities in both the legislation and guidance together with an inconsistency between the two around food
preparation have led to different interpretations by councils:and therefore variation across Scotland in how FPNC

has been implemented. Older people are also unclear about what free personal care means in practice.

e Theinitial cost estimates for the policy were difficult to make because of the limited information available at that
time, particularly regarding personal care delivered at home. However, monitoring the financial impact of the
poticy following implementation has been limited and central government has not-updated the longer-term cost

projections for FPNC since 2001, although it has carried out short-term projections to support the annual

allocations.

«  We estimate that the total costs of FPNC for the first four years were £1.8 billion. Councils would have spent

around £1.2 billion of this even if the policy had not been introduced.

«  Allowing for the limitations of the data available, we estimate that the additional costs for the first four years of
FPNC are around £600 million. This has led to a growing shortfall in centrat funding, and by 2005/06 we estimate

this was either £46 million or £63 million depending on the assumptions used.

« ltis likely that demand for FPNC will continue to grow with the projected increase in the older population and this

will have implications for the future costs of the policy.

e Councils are using a variety of approaches to manage demand for FPNC. Differences in the use of waiting lists

and eligibility criteria mean that older people may receive different levels of service depending on where they live.

’ The number of older people receiving free nursing care in care homes who are publicly funded is an estimate. The estimate is
based on the same number of those who contribute to their own living and accommodation costs and receive nursing care.

4



Page 57

Key recommendations

The Scottish Parliament should require the Scottish Government to provide robust and comprehensive financial

estimates, including risk assessments, in support of all bills that have financial implications.
The Scottish Government and councils should continue to work together as a matter of urgency to:

e Clarify current ambiguities with the policy. This includes making clear whether personal and nursing
care is a universal entitlement to older people based on an assessment or whether locally available
budgets and resources can be taken into account. There is also a need to address about the
inconsistency between the legislation and guidance around food preparation. They should then

ensure that the policy is consjstently applied across Scotland from now on.

e Agree a national eligibility framework which defines risks and priority levels to ensure transparency in

access to care for older people.
The Scottish Government should:

» Improve the centrai monitoring and future planning of FPNC by updating its cost projections; clearly

identifying the information needed from councils; and ‘setting out a clear framework for this purpose.

s Work with councils to ensure completion of national finance returns complies with accounting guidance

so that full costs, including overheads, are reported.

e Review national allocation-amounts for FPNC and methods for distributing this to councils to ensure

that these accurately reflect the factors which influence local demand for services.
e Set robust outcome measures to evaluate the effectiveness of major policies in the future.

Councils should:

e Improve their information systems to enable them to collect comprehensive and accurate information
on FPNC, and other aspects of care and support services. The information on FPNC should be used

by the Scottish Government for central monitoring and future policy development.
«  Provide clear information to older people on what is covered by FPNC.

«  Publish clear information on eligibility criteria and the thresholds where services are provided, the

operation of waiting lists and local care home and home care charging policies.

s Work with local health partners to evaluate the longer-term consequences of reducing domestic home

care services, such as cleaning, shopping and laundry services.




Page 58

Our study

8.  Our specific objectives were to:

e evaluate the robustness of financial planning, monitoring and reporting arrangements for FPNC

at both a national and local level

* examine the current costs and funding allocations for FPNC across councils in Scotland

e identify the financial impact of FPNC on older people, the Scottish Government and councils.

9.  We did not look at continuing care arrangements in the NHS or at resource transfer between health

and social care.

10. For this study we carried out:

« an analysis of national data including demographics, older people's services and financial

information

« adata survey of the 32 councils focusing on activity, financial, policy and practice information.

o focus groups with older people and care providers®

o interviews with staff in six councils, the Convention of Scottish Local Authorities (COSLA) and

the Scottish Government
« asurvey of independent care home providers
e areview of a sample of care packages since 2002 in two councils.

11.  Our study complements the work of Lord Sutherland, who has been commissioned by the Cabinet
Secretary for Health and Wellbeing to carry out an independent review of the policy. He is due to

report in March 2008.

12. Prior to September 2007, the Scottish Administration was generally referred to as the Scottish
Executive. It is now called the Scottish Government. When dealing with the earlier period this report

refers to the Scottish Executive. Recommendations for the future refer to the Scottish Government.

8 We commissioned Age Concern Scotland to carry out the focus groups. A report on the findings can be found on our website
www.audit-scotland.gov.uk




Page 59

o

14

SCOTLAND

AUDIT




Page 60

9p]

40
0 L
w o ©©
— C >~ @
O 5 O O
C O X C
gr.rOS
eese
hvug
teCn
n I 590
eOlem@
.nl\.uH.rllh
5o 20
- o g+ E
O w O
= (O 4=
.&am.@
@2 e =2

-
+L
g <2
o2
= E%0




1. This latest report shows that local
government in Scotland continues
to face and address significant
challenges and the Commission
recognises the general improvement
which has been achieved. We
particularly welcome:

* Progress in service delivery, such

as a further increase in the amount

of waste which is recycled and
composted to over 28 per cent.

* The general picture of sound
financial accounting and
reporting, with accounts and
audits completed on time.

* Scrutiny more embedded
than before.

* A further improvement in the trend

of in-year council tax collection,
with nearly 94 per cent of the
amount due for 2006/07 collected
during the year.

2. Last year we highlighted the major
changes likely as a result of the 2007

elections. Many of the improvements

in decision-making and scrutiny are
still bedding in and councils need to
keep them under review to make
sure they are effective. The report
shows that councillors are receiving
training and councils need to build
on this to support them in their new
and developing roles, especially in

strategic leadership and policy choice.

3. The overall context for councils
is one of continuing change and
pressures on resources. In particular:

* The concordat between the
Scottish Government and COSLA,
and in particular the shift to an
outcomes-based approach, mean
that councils and their partners
will need to give renewed focus
to ways they can demonstrate
improved services for customers
and citizens.

Page 61

* The pressure on budgets is likely
to lead to difficult choices for
councils at a time when the shift
to single status, for example, is still
far from complete. This underlines
the importance of robust long-term
financial planning which is risk-
based and sustainable.

4. If councils are to meet the
challenges ahead, they will need to
increase their focus on a number of
key areas, including:

* supporting and developing
leadership skills and capacity

* demonstrating the net benefits
from community planning, other
partnership working and shared
business support services

* taking a more strategic approach
to resources which informs and
integrates finance, workforce and
asset planning

* stronger commitment to testing
the competitiveness of services
and to continuous improvement

* developing robust baseline data
against which improvements in
service delivery can be measured
and demonstrated

¢ improving performance
management significantly to
demonstrate delivery of the
outcomes approach.

5. Looking ahead, the Crerar report
on scrutiny, audit and inspection
highlights the need for more
streamlined scrutiny based upon
robust self-assessment and a
sharper focus on the needs and
concerns of service users. We
support this approach and welcome
the role envisaged for the Accounts
Commission in taking this forward.

Commission findings 3



Page 62

It

ht strengths and areas

draws on our 2007 aud

IS report

Th

g

hii

19
improvement

work to h

for




1. This report provides an overview

of the main issues arising from our
audit work in local government in
2007 It draws on a range of sources
to identify common features in the
management and delivery of services
and to highlight strengths and areas
for improvement.

2. The report is organised into
five parts.

e Part 1. Setting the scene:
gives an overview of the
current context for local
government in Scotland.

¢ Part 2. Governance: covers
progress on Best Value, the
arrangements for supporting
governance and how councils
are organised to deliver services.

* Part 3. Use of resources: covers
how councils are managing their
finances, workforce and assets.

¢ Part 4. Performance: looks at
performance management and
how well councils are delivering
services.

e Part 5. Qutlock: looks ahead and
sets out the key priorities and risks
for local authorities in the coming
year and our audit approach.

3. We have used extracts from audit
reports as exhibits and case studies;
these are provided to support the text
and are not necessarily the best or
only examples.

Page 63

Key messages

The polmcal context for local
government has changed
. srgruflcanﬂy with a new
. government and a shn‘t o
more coalition and rninonty
_ administrations at councils:
\ Almost half of the councrllors

L Ioca! government they will.need

The g ernment frs'l,.eoranmitted

need 1o'do more
to demonstrate that the

_ time invested in developing
cormunity planning and other
forms of partnership working is
resulting in improved services;
the proposed new outcome
agreements will require more
effective management of joint

. delivery arfangements.

« |n delivering services through
-_ external organrsatrons such
as companres and trusts, -
. councils need to ensure good
~_governance and to maintain
clear accountability for finance
and performance.

 elected in May 2007 are new o

:-, contmurng support to carry out 1

uncils: could '
SS W|th their

Summary 5

Overall financial reserves were

the_ levels of two

. years ago but the are wrde

. variations among

"'are rncreasmg a

The demands on services
‘mpetang
pressures on resources mean

; ,dn‘flcult chorces for counorls

- There remarns an.urgent .
- need 10 1mprove performance
' management, mcludrng robust

\ performance report .
. is particularly important in the
_ light of the outcomes approach.
' Councrls still have some way -

 Financial accountrng and

reporting in councils. remarns :

~ generally. sound Accounts and

'mpleted on trme

chal!enge and balanced. pubhc

togoin producm good qualrty
management informationto
inform decision- makrng and ol
demonstrate efficiency gains
and service outcomes. This
limits-audit’s ability to.provide
an overview of performance
across services. :



AUDIT SCOTLAND

ks A

Py




Page 65

f the

lews the impact o
School Estate Strategy and what has

IS report revi

Th

d so far.

leve

been ach




About the study

1. Ten years ago, many of Scotland’s
schools were in a state of serious
disrepair. Education was a high-
priority policy area for both central
and local government and so a major
programme of school building and
renewal began. The programme
started at the end of the 1990s, with
the first new and refurbished schools
opening in 2000 and 2001

2. In 2003, the Scottish Executive
and the Scottish Convention of Local
Authorities (COSLA) launched the
School Estate Strategy.” The overall
aim of the strategy is to raise the
quality of the school estate, ensuring
that no schools are in poor condition®
or otherwise unsuitable for 21st
century education. The strategy states
that new and refurbished schools
should be well designed, well built,
and well managed.

3. The focus of this report is to
evaluate the impact of the strategy
on school buildings and what has
been achieved to date. Where
appropriate we comment on relevant
recommendations from Taking the
initiative, a previous report published
in 2002 by the Accounts Commission
and the Auditor General for Scotland,
which examined the use of the Private
Finance Initiative (PFI) in the early
projects in the programme of school
building and renewal.’

4. This report was prepared on behalf
of the Accounts Commission and
the Auditor General for Scotland and
addresses the following questions:

e \What does the School Estate
Strategy aim to achieve?

e How many schools have been
rebuilt or refurbished?

—

Page 66

e How much has this cost?

* How effective are the new and
refurbished school buildings?

¢ How well are the Scottish
Government and councils
managing the improvements?

5. The purpose of the study is not

to assess the merits of one funding
route compared to another, but to
consider what has been achieved for
the investment made, whatever its
source. We have not examined links
between improvements to school
buildings and educational performance
as there is limited evidence available.
Our report recommends actions that
will help to achieve the aims of the
strategy in the future.

6. We collected evidence for this
report through:

¢ reviewing documentation and
analysing existing data

e gathering information from all
councils on the profile of their
school estate and the costs of
improvements made to it

e assessing the design quality of
18 new and refurbished schools

* undertaking focus groups
with school pupils and issuing
guestionnaires to staff at ten new
and refurbished schools

e interviewing officers at six councils
(East Lothian, East Renfrewshire,
Fife, Glasgow, Highland, West
Lothian)

¢ interviewing key officials in the
Scottish Governmient and other
key stakeholders.

In Falkirk, Stirling, Glasgow and East Renfrewshire.

2 Building our Future: Scotland's School Estate, Scottish Executive and COSLA, 2003 ) ) o
3 Assessed as being either ‘in poor condition - major defects and/or not operating adequately” or ‘in bad condition — life expired or at serious risk of imminent

failure’, School Estate Statistics 2004, Scottish Executive, 2005.

[Sa N

From 2000/01 to 2006/07

Taking the initiative: using PFI contracts to renew council schools, Audit Scotland, 2002.

Summary 3

Key messages

7. When the Scottish Executive
launched the School Estate

Strategy in 2003, there was a lack

of comprehensive and consistent
information from councils about their
school buildings. The strategy did

not set out exactly what needs to be
done or how it will be achieved. The
Executive allocated financial support
to councils before having reliable
information and before developing the
strategy. However, the information
available is improving so the Scottish
Government and councils should now
be able to review the strategy, set
specific outcomes and targets and
prepare a detailed plan for achieving
them (Part 2).

8. The strategy has led to many
schools being improved, including
219 brand new buildings by the end
of 2007 Using its own criteria, the
Scottish Government can show that
its two interim targets of improving
first 100, and then another 200,
schools by 2006 have been met.
However, at current rates of progress,
we estimate it could take up to 20
years to remove all schools from poor
condition and make them suitable for
21st century education — the overall
aims of the strategy (Part 3).

- 9. Investment worth £3.9 billion

has been committed to improving
schools in the last seven years,5 and
this is expected to have increased

to over £5.2 billion by April 2008.

The Scottish Government cannot
accurately assess how much still has
to be spent to achieve the overall
aims of the strategy due to the
limitations of the data and information
available. If the strategy is to continue,
the government now needs 1o

assess future costs and develop a
financial strategy to deliver on these.



Page 67

lons to

kes recommendat
h Government and counc

is report ma

Th

Is to

improvements to

IS

the Scott

ISe |

(m

help them max

the school estate




Part 2. What does the School Estate

Strategy aim to achieve?

¢ The Scottish Government and
councits should review the School
Estate Strategy and set specific,
measurable and meaningful
targets to ensure that the
aims of the strategy are clearly
expressed and progress can be
properly assessed.

¢ The strategy should contain an
implementation plan, which sets
out what has to be done, when
and by whom.

* The Scottish Government and
councils should report progress
using Information collected at
an agreed time and to an
agreed standard.

Part 3. What has been achieved?

* The Scottish Government and
councils should implement
standardised approaches for
collecting reliable information
about the condition and suitability
of school buildings.

* The Scottish Government and
councils should agree to report
progress in terms of new, clearly
defined targets reflecting key
standards for condition, suitability
and sufficiency.

Part 4. How much is it costing?

¢ The Scottish Government should
identify a financial strategy for
achieving the aims of the School
Estate Strategy. The amount of
financial investment required
should be estimated now and
kept under review as information
improves and progress towards
targets continues. The financial
strategy should allow for the long
lead-in time required for major
school-building projects.

Page 68

Councits should develop plans for
the duration of their PFl contracts
that identify how they will pay
the increasing charges for their
PFI contracts.

The Scottish Government and
councils should ensure that
adequate resources are allocated
to building maintenance for
schools without PFI
maintenance contracts.

Part 5. How effective are the
improvements?

To maximise their positive impact,
refurbishments need to be
designed taking an overall view of
the whole school.

Environmental sustainability should
be a key element of school design,
not an added extra.

Councils should consider
preparing user guides for all

new and refurbished schools to
ensure that staff know how to
make the best use of the facilities
in their building.

Councils should use the Scottish
Executive’s guidance Optimising
the internal environment to make
sure that future school designs
strike a good balance for the
comfort of everyone who uses
the building.

The Scottish Government and
councils need to continue working
to identify and share good (and
bad) practice to ensure that the
quality of design keeps improving.

Councils should make sure they
consult and involve school users
at the design stages, even if this
means the process takes longer.

Part 8. Recommendations 41

¢ Councils should complete post-

occupancy evaluations as a matter
of priority. They should make the
results available to other councils
and take up the opportunities
offered through the Local Authority
School Estates Network to
compare notes and learn from
each other.

Part 6. How well are the
improvements being managed?
¢ Councils should estimate

pupil rolls for at least ten years
ahead and should review these
assessments at least annually.

Councils need to build flexibility
into their school estate plans

to accommodate both longer

term demographic changes and
unforeseen local changes. This
might include school buildings that
can be readily expanded or easily
converted to other uses.

The Scottish Government and
councils should do more to share
experiences and develop joint
approaches to improving the
school estate. There are potential
efficiency savings to be made
from more sharing of staff and
technical expertise.

Councils should transfer learning
from experiences on school estate
nmanagement to improve general
asset management across their
organisations as appropriate.
COSLA should take a lead role in
coordinating this, in consultation
with the Scottish Government

and the Improvement Service

if appropriate.



Page 69

DIT SCOTLAND

e

.

s




Page 70

: wmww

Scotland

In

Ive savings from NFI i

The cumulat

on.

are now around £37 m




Key messages

= The 2006/07 National Frau

1. Audit Scotland, working with the
Audit Commission, external auditors
and a range of public bodies in
Scotland, has undertaken another
major counterfraud exercise. These
exercises, known as the National
Fraud Initiative in Scotland (NF),

are undertaken every two years as
part of the statutory audits of the
public bodies. The latest exercise
(NFl 2006/07) commenced In
October 2006 and is now complete,
or substantially complete, at most
participating bodies.

2. Seventy-four bodies took part in

NFI 2006/07 These included counclls,
police authorities, fire and rescue
authorities, Strathclyde Partnership for
Transport, health boards, the Scottish
Public Pensions Agency (SPPA} and
the Student Awards Agency for
Scotland. The 2006/07 exercise built
on the 2004/05 NFI and pilot exercises
carried out in previous years.

Page 71

3. NFI uses computerised data
matching to compare a range of
information held on bodies’ systems
{eg, housing benefits, public
sector pay and pensions, students,
disabled persons’ ‘blue badge’
parking permits and a government
register of deceased persons) to
identify inconsistencies or other
circumstances that might indicate
fraud or error. These "'matches’

are provided to the audited bodies
via a secure website for them

to investigate.

4.7To date, fraud and overpayments
of £9.7 million have been found as a
result of the 2006/07 NF in Scotland,
and this amount is expected to
increase in the months ahead. The
main outcomes included:

e 186 occupational pensions
stopped because the pensioner
was found to be deceased

¢ 1,552 housing benefit cases
invalving public sector pensioners

* 672 housing benefit cases
involving public sector employees

® 969 disabled blue badges
cancelled after NFl identified that
the holder was deceased.

5. The cumulative fraud and error
detected by the NFI in Scotland is
now around £37 million, and this does
not reflect the extent to which NFI
may help to deter more fraud.

6. The level of fraud and error
identified from the 2006/07 exercise
is about a third less than that reported
at the 2004/05 exercise. This is not
especially surprising. The most likely
reasons are that:

e 2004/05 NF! was the first
significant roll out of NFi for
councils in Scotland, and
outcomes from that exercise

Summary 3

were always likely to be untypical.
NFI 2004/05 helped bodies to
identify the longest-running frauds
and errors; whereas most fraud
and error found at the 2006/07
exercise should only have run for
two years at most

¢ NFI, and other anti-fraud work by
bodies, is making an impact in
deterring fraud

¢ informed by the fraud and error
cases identified previously, bodies
have made improvements to their
systems of control

* in addition, SPPA had not
completed its investigations at the
time of preparing this report and its
final results are expected to reduce
the difference between the 2004/05
and 2006/07 NFl outcomes.

7. Audit Scotland will continue to
work with the Audit Commission on
NFI and will commence the 2008/09
exercise in October 2008. We are
currently revising our Code of Data
Matching Practice to ensure that NFI
exercises continue to comply with
data protection requirements, and
to reflect best practice in notifying
individuals about the use of their
information in NFl exercises.

8. Audit Scotland is also in discussion
with the Scottish Government Criminal
Justice Directorate about providing
Scotland with the same express data
matching powers that were recently
given to other UK audit agencies by
the Serious Crime Act 2007



Page 72




e : ; y gy T ) 4 R

s . ., . 8 i . g / e . s L . Ay
Chemean : i ; ; : i A a0 . . A . .

L e . ; j G iyl ;

o . )

: .
: ...

% Fal RIS
i \x»\Q\ i i ; yvﬁﬁ \.wemx\ -

G . o
b e .
g R I

e .. .
i L . .
- .- .
. ..
b Erl i e D s au

; ; - ..
: . ) o s L e s
e . ; . ... .. .

‘. e s g
S0 s AL L e
e e ﬁ»\«\w\.
s
i L

75

.
.

% o s
. i e
L
STy e T

% g9 4 7 Sl

s ats
Wy

s e i
e o

&

i

na

; \ .

B g G e G
e s ; ; o / S .
ol e « ; 1 ; o bR : : . ..

=

’ ? . - : . b e e st 1
o ‘ “ e o L
Ui il
. - .
. S
e G i =
A e
e o e
i . S
s i . s

B ¥ : % 5 SRR ’ ; i bt . . 2 il G % 5 . .
i

s
s

o
S

Ch R i

ton-

i
o
i G .
o

G e
L
s
i i

IS

.
I e
R A S
S

il L
% e

i
R i
i G

e oy
a\§\\ i w\i\m\\\\w&%&w\“\w\\ .

. Vi
...
e e s
e s
.. . . @
R e
- \\\\\\\\w@\\\\» \»\w\\w\w\\
e

= 2 Lo
. -
. .

7 5

s
il

ital

e

. -

3

Vit . .
o8 s
9 N L G G e Z
A m\\\“

g

7 S

N

N

Al / s : e i R
o ; it

hat good dec

| programme and good

dual pro

oi
0

.
w‘w\»\ ...

ey e e A S
i ... .

S . e »

v . %\«\\&&“\\a\ 7

. s
w>\w\ e i
e A i e

N

i e o
2 e 7
.

s =
e 7 L
s i 7 e -

jects are v

s
Hr

i

il
.

Y . m\,.uﬁ\,\.\&\.ﬁ&« o
W s
S i
e s

g . 0 : d 7
. ¢ o i 4

itk 3 Y H / B 2

S e S

...
# ...
i 2 I T
i ...
gy G i

I G,

e

Ita
i

indiv

b o
7 .
s .
o %
2

. 2 o
. . i . .
/ e
i 7 o
A e
- .
L o Sl
Giie i G
T il

v e

. . .
I e
g

i
28

Investment means t

bout the cap

.

-
o e v
e . -
. .
G 4 e
S SR
LG T W\x L

il

2

2

S

i R i v
gl i v
% 7 &Nei\wﬁ\» > D

! 7 il e
L e g
7 .

iNng a

G

. G

.
N

N

Bt
o

management of

The scale of
mak

b R
: iy e iy




Capital investment in the public
sector is significant

1. Public investrment in infrastructure
touches most aspects of Scottish life.
It provides new and upgraded facllities,
such as roads, railways, hospitals,
schools,
projects. Between 2002 and 2007, the
Scottish Government and its agencies,
nondepartmenital public bodies INDPBs;)
and the NHS completed 43 publiciy-
funded major capital projects valued at
£811 million {Appendix 1).

2. There are currently 104 major
projects valued at £4.7 billion in
progress {Appendix 2). Most of these
are in the transport and health sectors
{(Exhibit 1), There are:

« Nine large projects — seven transport
and two health projects —with a
combined value of £2.8 billion. The
value of these projects ranges from
£120 million to £692 miflion.

¢ Thirtyseven medium projects

~mainly in the transport, health and
justice sectors, valued at between

Exhibit 1

museums, prisons and rmajor 1T

Page 74

£15 rnilion and £85 miion each -
with a combined vaiue of £1.4 billion.

« Fifty-eight smaller projects — covering
all government portfolios, vaiued at
less than £15 million each — with a
cormbined value of £0.5 bilion. *

3. The scale of investment means that
good decision-making about the capital
programme and good management of
individual projects are vital.

4. In May 2008, the Scottish
Government proposed the further
development of the Scottish Futures
Trust initiative. This includes plans to
provide a focal point for coordinated
public sector infrastructure planning

and investment. If approved and
implemented, this coordination may help
address our recommendations below.

Summary of key messages

_Major capital projects by government portfolio

ole growth
rclects)

Total

Source:-Audit Scotland

1 We define a major project as having a capital cost of £5 million or more.
2 We have defined small, medium and large projects as less than £15 million, £15 -100 million and over £100 million respectively.

Summary 3

ed, as plans are more
riain-and risks clearer.
- Two-thirds ol proj

, ’ octs revie
so appear on track t© mee:




» assessment of: risks; the range
. of options to be considered;
. anda clear basis for assessing,
revrewmg and reportmg

', ;burld whole~hfe costs into.
,“‘,busrness cases and subsequent
! prOJeCt reportmg :

ensure cost tlme and quahty
- targets are clear fromthe
~ ;,}outset and properly recorded v

; yrmprove early stage es‘uma‘ung
- of the cost and time of projects.

* -v'assessment and qua fi catlon’

carry out post—prOJect :
- evalua‘uons withina reasonable
 timescale to determine whether
. projects have delivered the

Page 75

They need to ‘ensure better ‘ and functsona lity): Evaluatrons .

- need for lndependent gateway or
, srmrlar reviews at key stages in:
pro1ects

or srmrlar reviews at the key

stages in prolects -

- _ensure project budgets are

suffrcrent to allow for post-
prOJect evaluatlon in all progects .

.beneﬂts mtended (beneflts

. include satisfying the busrness
- requirerments as wellas ‘
providing good~quahty design



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77 Agenda ltem 10

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S UNIT 19 SEPTEMBER 2008

PYRAMID - PROGRESS REPORT

1 SUMMARY

This paper provides a brief update of progress with the
implementation of the Council’s performance management system,
Pyramid.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that Audit Committee has an update during the

remainder of the Pyramid implementation — due to complete May
2009.

3 DETAIL

The attached report was presented to the Performance Improvement
Strategic Board on 15™ August. It was suggested that training
opportunities are needed for Members as well as DMTs and the SMT
to increase use of Pyramid at a strategic level.

On August 15", 93% of performance measures were populated with
up-to-date data.

For further information contact:

David Clements,

Performance Manager,

Policy and Strategy.

Telephone 01546 604205

Email: david.clements@argyll-bute.gov.uk




Page 78

Pyramid Progress Report
15" August 2008

Pyramid Implementation Project Overview

The Council adopted the current performance management framework in
2004. Before that time, performance reports were largely based on financial
information only. A further development was the introduction of non-financial
performance reports to the SMOG and the Audit Committee in 2006 along
with a unified reporting framework. The introduction of the software system,
Pyramid, in 2007 makes available a wider range of up-to-date performance
information to all Members and managers across the organisation.

The Pyramid project is working with each Service through a series of
workshops, seminars and training sessions to develop a Service scorecard,
representing the key performance features of the Service. The 12 week
programme culminates in go-live when the Head of Service signs off the
scorecard. Following go-live, the Head of Service presents their scorecard to
their DMT, explaining the key aspects of their performance. The DMT
acknowledges and agrees Service performance with Departmental and
Strategic impact. Finally, the Head of Service presents their scorecard to the
SMT who sign-off the implementation and agree the aspects of Service
performance with significance at a corporate level.

The main purpose of the Pyramid project is to promote and support a change
of the organisational culture to one fucused on performance.

Progress to date

The pilot phase of the project concluded with Roads and Amenity Services,
Financial Services (including Benefits) and some cross cutting Strategic
Financial data in Pyramid. Additional work was undertaken with Education to
prove the use of an automated data transfer from SEEMIS to Pyramid. It was
clear at this point that additional people were required to deliver Pyramid
within an acceptable timescale. The SMT agreed that Departments would
each provide a secondee for a period of 2 years.

The main phase of the project is progressing satisfactorily, with 14 Services
being directly involved so far. This level of progress has only been possible
with the secondees from other Departments. The attached table illustrates
overall progress with Services.

Strategic Finance and Financial Services (including Benefits) have completed
the process. Roads & Amenity Services and Planning & Performance will
follow in the next few months.

Successes

The positive attitude of most Service Heads and 3™ tier managers has
enabled the project to progress largely to plan. Services with a strong record
of monitoring performance have coped very well with the additional work of
developing Pyramid scorecards. This has enabled the Pyramid Team to add
other essential aspects of performance to the Pyramid model, including the
Statutory Performance Indicators, Social Work Improvement Plan and the

2



Page 79

Best Value Improvement Plan. Other sections have been progressed
including the European & Employability Unit, Performance & Support, the
Corporate Risk Register and the Capital Programme. These are areas of
work not included in the original Project Plan.

In terms of organisational culture, it is clear that the Pyramid implementation
programme is providing space for Services to think about their purpose and
performance. This has enabled the Pyramid team to encourage discussion
about key metrics and critical areas of performance, focusing on the cause
and effect of service delivery. Sometimes referred to as Strategy Mapping or
the Golden Thread, this process illustrates the links between the Corporate
Objectives, Service Plans and service delivery.

Issues

Whilst a positive attitude is apparent in most Services, there are still pockets
of resistance. Sometimes this is simple resistance to change, at other times it
is clear that there is little understanding of how performance can be managed.
Resistance to change is overcome in part by ensuring that Heads of Services
have control over the Pyramid implementation programme. It is made clear
that Pyramid is the adopted corporate system and managers have a
responsibility to ensure that the system is properly employed. Although
sometimes grudging, there is general acceptance that Pyramid has the
potential to be a useful corporate system.

Where the Pyramid Team finds little experience or understanding about
performance management techniques, the programme of workshops includes
sufficient opportunity for managers to follow the basic principles.

A major issue is the need for pull as well as push. The Pyramid Team is
pushing Services along the path of building and maintaining their Pyramid
scorecards. Services are generally progressing along the performance
management path with encouragement and assistance from the Pyramid
Team. What is needed now is for Members and senior managers to demand
(pull) information from Services through Pyramid - to define the improvement
path and charge Services to follow.

Pyramid allows Members and managers to view and analyse information,
leading to the formulation of questions and ideas focused on improvement.
There is little experience across the organisation of actively seeking and using
performance information. Previous practice has been to accept regular
reports or to make ad-hoc requests for specific information. Using Pyramid,
Services will respond to the demand from Members and managers for timely,
accurate information.



Feb-

Mar-

Dept  Scorecard  May-

CE Statutory Pls

Comm SW Improvement Plan

CE BV Audit Improvement Plan

Corp Financial Services (+ Benefits)

Op Roads and Amenity Services

CE Strategic Finance Y Y

CE Personnel Services Y Y

Comm Education (@) Y Y Y

Comm : Planning and Performance (@) Y Y Y

Dev Planning Services o) o) o) Y Y Y

CE Corporate Capital Programme o) o) o) Y Y Y

Corp ICT Services (0] O ) Y Y Y

Comm : Community Regeneration O ) (@) Y Y Y

Dev European & Employability @) ) (@) Y Y Y

CE Policy & Strategy o) o) o) Y Y

CE Communications ) O O Y Y

Dev Performance and Support ) (@) O Y Y Y

Comm Children and Families O @) ) Y Y Y

Op Facility Services (@) ) ) Y Y Y

Comm  Adult Social Work @) @) O Y Y Y

Corp Democratic Services O 0] (0] Y Y Y
Corp Legal and Protective Services (0] @) ) @) Y
Dev Transportation & Infrastructure (0] 0] ) @) Y

orange - planned workshop phase

yellow - planned post workshop development

green - live
red — delayed




Page 81 Agenda ltem 11

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S UNIT 18 SEPTEMBER 2008

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORTS

1 SUMMARY
This paper provides a summary of the Service quarterly reports for
the period April to June 2008, consisting of the exceptional
performance sections only.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Audit Committee
« notes the Service performance in the report and
« considers the style and content of the report and makes
suggestions about improvements to this report to assist the Audit
Committee in considering performance matters.

3 DETAIL

Service Plans include a level of detail for each Priority, essentially
the third tier management level across the Council. Where a Priority
is reported as performing above or below the planned level, this
performance may be evaluated as exceptional.

The selection of performance included as exceptional relies on the
report provided by Services. It is this exceptional performance that is
included here. Where explanations for exceptional performance
have been provided by Services they are repeated here.

The full quarterly reports are available from the Performance
Manager in the Policy and Strategy Team.

For further information contact:

David Clements,

Performance Manager,

Policy and Strategy.

Telephone 01546 604205

Email: david.clements@argyll-bute.gov.uk




Page 82

Argyll and Bute Council
Extracts from Quarterly Performance Reports Apr-Jun 2008

This paper draws together the exception reports from the quarterly Service
performance reports for the first quarter 2008/09. Exception reports are those
areas of service delivery that the Head of Service considers ahead (v') or
behind (%) the planned level of service. Where no exceptional performance
has been reported, the level of service is generally as planned.

Chief Executive’s Unit
Communications — no exception reports

Personnel Services — no exception reports

Policy and Strategy

x Proactive work is still suffering due to pressures on the small team. This
period effort has been directed to the Single Outcome Agreement.

x Performance management progressing well in most areas. Ingrained
cultural patterns of work/ behaviours are slowing some parts of the process.

Strateqic Finance
e Both loan fund and long term borrowing rates show favourable trends

Community Services

Adult Social Work

v Some improvements to the number of people awaiting assessments
across a range of disciplines (similar to previous quarter, showing a
continued improving trend)

Community Regeneration - no exception reports

Planning and Performance - no exception reports

Children and Families - no exception reports

Education
v The educational attainment of children leaving local authority care has
shown considerable improvement.

Corporate Services

ICT and Financial Services

x 12 month delay to e-Planning system due to national programme delays,
reported previously, may come on stream sooner than March 09.

x The number of new Benéefit claims outstanding longer than 50 days stands

at over 35% against a target of 9% - a continued deteriorating trend.

x New benefit claims and changes to circumstances have generally been

slower than planned

v The percentage of payments made within 7 days of determination has risen

to over 99%.




Page 83

Legal and Protective Services

x The number of trade premises inspected has dropped due to staff
shortages. A focus has been given to consumer complaints instead.

x No performance measures have been developed for animal health and
welfare (same comment in previous 4+ reports).

Democratic Services and Governance
o The lack of stated targets in some areas reduces the value of the report.

Development Services
Transportation and Infrastructure - no exception reports

Planning
v There has been continued overall improvement in the response times for

building warrants, planning applications and completion certificates
x The vacancy in the Access Manager’s post is still causing delays in the
Core Path Plan

Operational Services

Roads and Amenity Services

o The report from this Service is a Pyramid printout. Too little data is entered
to assess progress. The Head of Service has committed to re-vitalise the
Pyramid data in time for the next report. This has come about in part as a
result of recent changes to management responsibilities which were not
reflected in Pyramid in time for this report.

Facility Services

e Declining numbers of school pupils taking up school meals, but those who
do are mostly very satisfied with the quality, choices, etc.

e A good deal of user data is presented in the report with little analysis.

x A significant reduction in the budget for the Education planned
maintenance programme is predicted to have a severe effect on the ability
to carry out work in the future. It is suggested that this may put pressure on
Head Teachers and Property staff to over-compensate by treating routine
repairs as emergency maintenance - this gives access to the limited budget
available. The current overspend is reported as £82,625.




Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85 Agenda ltem 12

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL Audit Committee
CORPORATE SERVICES 19 SEPTEMBER 2008

Risk Management and Business Continuity Strategy

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Governance and Risk Manager has been instructed to provide
an updated report on the progress being made with the
implementation of the Council’s Risk Management and Business
Continuity Strategy.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Committee note the terms of this report.
3. DETAIL

3.1 Risk Register

A demonstration of the format for transfer of the information into
Pyramid was given by Lyndis Davidson at the last RMG meeting.
All departmental reps were happy that it will meet there needs. The
RMG will arrange for transfer of the data into Pyramid by the end
of September, all departments are to nominate administrative
officers to complete the process/training which will be undertaken
in conjunction with the performance management team.

3.2 Business Continuity

The DRP’s for each Service should be submitted by 17 September
in order that the quality assurance checks and any amendments
can be made prior to them being signed off by the Departmental
Management Teams. A presentation to Directors and Heads of
Service on where we are with the Business Continuity Programme
has been arranged for 1 October and as part of that, there will also
be training on the Incident Management Plan.

An exercise of the BC plan will be arranged for early November.
A presentation will be made to the December Audit Committee on

the outcomes of the BC process.

lain Jackson
Governance and Risk Manager
2 September 2008



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 87 Agenda ltem

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 19 SEPTEMBER 2008

INTERNAL AUDIT SECONDMENT POLICY

1. SUMMARY
The Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government (the Code) issued by
CIPFA in 2000 sets out good practice in delivering internal audit services. The Code was
revised in 2006 and Grant Thornton UK LLP, in May 2007 carried out a Code
compliance review resulting in a report. One resultant recommendation required that
Internal Audit have a policy on the secondment of staff both from and to Internal Audit.
This arose originally as a result of staff being seconded from Internal Audit to other
sections within Strategic Finance. A proposed policy is attached.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1  Inthe past members of staff have been seconded from Internal Audit to other
sections of Strategic Finance. There has also been an instance where one of the
Trainee Accountants has been seconded to Internal Audit for a period prior to
sitting an Auditing paper in the CIPFA examinations. In order to prevent a conflict
of interest a policy has been produced that will prevent Auditors covering areas
where they had previously worked. The policy will prevent any staff seconded into
Internal Audit covering areas of work associated with their substantive post.

4. CONCLUSIONS

The Committee is asked to approve the proposed policy.

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1 Policy: None
5.2 Financial: None
5.3 Personnel: None
54  Legal: None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact Alex Colligan, Internal Audit Manager (01546
604271).
27th August 2008

13



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 89

Internal Audit Secondment Policy

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Internal Audit staff being seconded to other duties

Internal Audit staff may on occasion be seconded to other duties within
the Council. Any such secondment must be with the agreement of the
Head of Strategic Finance and the Internal Audit Managers.

The period of secondment must be agreed at the outset of the
secondment and any extension of the secondment must also be
agreed by the Head of Strategic Finance and the Internal Audit
Managers.

At the end of the secondment the staff involved will return to the
Internal Audit section to take up their duties.

On return to their duties within Internal Audit staff must provide the
Internal Audit Managers with a note of the duties they carried out
during the period of their secondment. This note should include details
of the work carried out and within which departments and services.
This note will be retained by the Internal Audit Managers.

The Internal Audit Managers will ensure that the seconded staff will not
be involved in any audits or area of work for which they were
responsible during their period of secondment. This will last for a
period of not less than 2 years from the end of the secondment.

Staff being seconded into Internal Audit

Internal Audit may on occasion second staff to carry out duties within
the section. Any such secondment must be with the agreement of the
relevant Head of Service and line manager(s).

The period of secondment must be agreed at the outset of the
secondment and any extension must be agreed by all relevant
managers.

Commencing the secondment the seconded staff member must supply
a note to Internal Audit Managers detailing position held in their normal
role and the duties they carry out. This note will be retained by the
Audit Managers.

The Internal Audit Managers will ensure that the seconded staff will not
be involved in any audit work for which they are responsible for during
their normal working practices.

At the end of the secondment the staff involved will return to their
position within the Council.



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 91 Agenda Iltem 14
o Grant Thornton

Argyll and Bute Council

Interim Management Report
28 August 2008

DRAFT



Page 92
Argyll and Bute Council

2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

Contents

Executive Summary
1  Financial management and budgetary control
2 Audit Committee arrangements

3  National Fraud Initiative

Appendices

A Action plan

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

Page

13



Page 93

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

Executive Summary

Introduction

The Council is required to have arrangements in place for ensuring propriety, regularity and
Best Value in the stewardship of public funds. It is the responsibility of management to
ensure that adequate internal controls are in place which:

* ensure that resources are applied to the activities intended;
*  deter fraud and irregularity; and
= ensure the most effective use of resources.

As part of our 2007-08 audit, we have reviewed the adequacy of the Council's internal
control framework in the following areas:

* financial management and budgetary control;
* audit committee arrangements; and
*  participation in the National Fraud Initiative exercise.

Key Findings
Frnancial management and budgetary control/

The Council has generally good arrangements for financial management and budgetary
control and has improved its arrangements for linking corporate priorities into the budget
setting process. The linkage between budget setting and corporate priorities is being
addressed by the Council, but there remains scope for further transparency in this area.

The Council will continue to face financial pressures over the next three years, and currently
anticipates that the level of unearmarked reserves will fall below the target of 1.5% of net
operating expenditure by the end of the 2008-09 financial year. The Council's earmarked
reserves of £21 million remain healthy, however, the reduction in available un-earmarked
reserves presents a risk to the achievement of overall corporate objectives.

More generally, there is scope for greater transparency in the plans the Council has to apply
all earmarked reserves, including those currently earmarked within departmental budgets.

The Council has produced an Efficiency Savings Plan to identify ways to achieve the
Scottish Government's target of 2% efficiency gAINs per annum over the next three years,
but does not yet have the performance systems in place to measure outputs and outcomes
to support the measurement of efficiency.

Audit Committee arrangements
Our review found that the audit committee operates effectively and complies with the

majority of good practice principles outlined in the CIPFA guidance. In particular, the
approach adopted by the Council to appoint non-executives as chair and vice chair of the

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 94

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

audit committee goes beyond good practice, and significantly improves overall governance
and scrutiny within the Council.

We identified some areas where overall audit committee arrangements could be improved
further to fully comply with good practices principles, including;

*  reviewing and updating the committee's terms of reference to ensure it
incorporates all the areas recommended by CIPFA; and

*  establishing a formal training programme for committee members.

We also note that one member of the audit committee is also a Deputy Spokesperson. The
audit committee's existing terms of reference currently preclude the appointment of
Spokespersons to avoid the potential for conflicts of interest to emerge in the exercise of
scrutiny functions.

National Fraud Initiative

The Council participates in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) Exercise, but has identified
only a small amount of housing benefit fraud following its 2006-07 review. We found a
number of areas for improvement in the Council's arrangements for participating in the NFI
exercise, in particular the need for improved documentation of progress monitoring,
investigation and closure of case matches.

Way Forward

The findings and recommendations from our review are summarised in an Action Plan
(Appendix A) which accompanies this report. The Action Plan has been agreed with
management and incorporates the management response to audit recommendations.

The report includes some specific recommendations to strengthen internal controls. It is the
responsibility of management to decide the extent of the internal control system appropriate
to the Council.

About this report

This report is part of a continuing dialogue between the Council and Grant Thormton UK
LLP and is not, therefore, intended to cover every matter which came to our attention. Our
procedures are designed to support our audit opinion and they cannot be expected to
identify all weaknesses or inefficiencies in the Council's systems and work practices.

The report is not intended for use by third parties and we do not accept responsibility for
any reliance that third parties may place on.

Acknowledgements
We would like to take this opportunity to thank the staff who have been involved in this
review for their assistance and co-operation.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
28 August 2008

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 95

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

1 Financial management and budgetary control

1.1 Background

111  InFebruary 2008, the Council approved its first three year budget plan for the
period to 2010-11. This marks a significant change in the Council's approach to financial
management and budgetary control, and matches the introduction of the new three year
funding settlement with the Scottish Government for local authorities.

112  For the year ending 31 March 2009, the Council plans to spend some £252 million
on providing services, with education services accounting for the significant majority of
planned expenditure in line with Council priorities. Effective financial management and
budgetary control arrangements are therefore essential for the proper stewardship of the
Council's resources. Table 1 below provides a more detailed breakdown of the 2008-09
budget across services, excluding the effects of internal trading,

Table 1: 2008-09 revenue budget (excluding internal trading)

Other
0%

Joint Boards
Central Services 6%

1%

Non Distributed Costs
1%

Loan Charges
6%

Corporate and Democratic

2 Education
o

1%

Social Work
18%

General Fund Housing
Planning and Development 5%
1% Cultural and Related

Trading Services 4%

ads and Transport
1% 7% Environmental Services
7%

Source: Argyll and Bute Council

113 Our review assessed the adequacy of the Councils' financial management and
budgetary control arrangements covering;

the budget setting process;

the process for monitoring and reporting budget variances;

procedures for authorising and processing budget virements;

the reserves policy; and

arrangements for meeting the Scottish Government's efficiency savings target of
2% per annum.

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 96

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

1.2 Budget setting process

121  Inour 2006-07 audit, we noted that the Council prepared the budget on a largely
historical basis rather than on a more fundamental zero based budgeting approach. The
traditional budget setting approach does not always ensure that resources are targeted to the
Council's corporate priorities and objectives.

122 Since our last review, there have been significant changes in the Council's approach

to setting the budget. The main changes reflect the need to re-align the Council's budget to
meet the aims of the Concordat between the Scottish Government and local government,
including:

*  afunding settlement based over the three years to 2010-11;

» freezing of Council Tax at 2007-08 levels;

* the development of a Single Outcome Agreement to link national policy priorities
and targets with local priorities and circumstances;

* reduction in the ring-fencing of resources; and

* the requirement to meet an efficiency savings target of 2% per annum.

123  The Council has responded by developing a financial strategy which seeks to
provide a more transparent link between the revenue budget and corporate objectives. As
part of the budget process, the Council allocated free funding of £1 million to prioty areas
of roads and services for older people. The Council has also carried out a "golden thread"
review to monitor how it is progressing with matching objectives with financial resources.
This review concluded that there was a good linkage between budgets and corporate
priorities, although the review also identified some corporate priority areas that did not yet
seem to receive budget priority. The Council is moving towards making the linkage
between corporate priorities and budget setting, however there is scope to make this more
transparent.

Action Plan Pomt1

1.3 Budget monitoring

131  Regular and robust budget monitoring is required in order for the Council to
maintain effective budgetary control throughout the year. The Council prepares two main

types of budget monitoring reports:

e monthly budget monitoring reports for each budget holder;

e monthly budget monitoring reports for SMI’; and

e  quarterly budget reports for the Executive.
132 The budget monitoring reports are clear and concise, and provide budget holders
and members with the necessary level of information to understand the financial position.
Projected year end outturn figures are produced for each monthly budget monitoring report
and the quarterly report to the Executive.

133  However, budget reports continue to be produced on a cash basis, and many of the
identified variances are noted as "profiling issues". Thus, reports may not fully reflect the

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 97

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

Council's financial position at the report date, or be fully effective in highlighting potential
budget variances sufficiently early in the financial year for corrective action to be taken. The
Council should consider producing an accruals based budget report to report more
accurately on the financial position at the report date.

Action Plan Point2

1.4 Budget virements

141  The policies and procedures for processing budget virements (transfers of budget
authorisation between linked budget groupings) are set out in the Financial and Security
Regulations. These regulations require that:

» all virements above £25,000 are agreed by the relevant service Director, and
notified to the Head of Strategic Finance; and

= for virements above £100,000, there must be advance consultation with the Chair
and Vice Chair of the Executive, and all virements above £200,000 require specific
Executive approval.

142  The Council's financial and security regulations require budget virements to be
notified to the Head of Strategjc Finance. We reviewed a sample of twenty budget virements
processed during the 2007-08 financial year, and found that only three (15% of our sample)
had evidence that the correct notification procedures had been followed. This increases the
risk that budget virements are being processed without the necessary level of senior

management scrutiny.

Action plan point 3
1.5 Reserves
151  For the year ending 31 March 2007, the Council had a total general fund reserve
balance of £24.8 million, of which £20.5 million was earmarked for specific purposes, and
£4.3 million was unearmarked. Table 1 shows the breakdown of the main general fund
balances at 31 March 2007.

Table 1: General Fund balances as at 31 March 2007

31 March 2007

£'000s
Total General Fund 24,798
of which
Earmarked:
Smoothing Funds 6,587
Social Housing 3,173
Grant Income carried forward 3,918
Budget carried forward 4,843
Funding committed to 2007-08 2,026
Total Earmarked 20,547
Un-earmarked 4,251

Source: Argyll and Bute Council

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 98

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

152  Inour 2006-07 audit, we noted that the Council's arrangements for reserves were
prudent, but more could be done to better identify how the Council proposes to apply some
earmarked balances. The Council has responded by producing a new reserves policy, as part
of the three year budget setting process.

153  The Council has analysed the earmarked portion of the reserves and developed
budget expectations for specific reserve balances, including:

¢ the Waste Management PPP Smoothing Fund balance is expected to increase to
£9.5 million;

e abalance held for social housing projects to be funded by income generated from
council tax levied on second homes; and

e atarget to ensure that balances relating to unspent grants and contributions do not
exceed 1% of expenditure (current position is 1.8%) in any year.

154  We note that the level of earmarked reserves for social housing projects continues
to rise each year from the accumulation of council tax receipts on second homes
(approximately £1.7 million per year). The reserve will be used to fund projects based on the
conditions set out in the Strategic Housing Fund and Landbank policy. The Council has
provisionally allocated £0.642m in support of 2 projects.

Action plan point 4

155  The Council currently enables departments to carry forward unspent budget
provision between years. In 2007-08, the total value of this element of reserves had risen to
£6 million. Only funds set aside for specific purposes should be earmarked. A full review of
the earmarked general fund balance is carried out on an annual basis, and departments are
asked to provide explanations for balances carried forward. However, the Council should
ensure departments are sufficiently challenged in how they intend to utilise unspent budget
provisions as part of the budget process.

Action plan point 5

1.5.6  The Council is required to hold reserve balances to meet contingencies and respond
to unforeseen events. It is important that the Council hold adequate reserves of this type to
manage the impact such events can have on the ongoing operations of the Council.

157  The Council currently plans to reduce the target level of unearmarked reserves from
1.9% to 1.5% of net operating expenditure for 2008-09. Current forecasts indicate that this
revised target may not be met in the 2008-09 financial year due to a transfer from general
fund reserves to balance the budget for that year.

158  The revised target for unearmarked reserves has been calculated to reflect available
funds as part of the budget setting process and a partly risk based assessment of the reserves
balance required to be held to meet contingencies and respond to effectively to unforeseen
events.

Action plan point 6

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 99

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

1.6 Efficiency savings

1.6.1  The Scottish Government has set local authorities an efficiency savings target of
2% per annum for the 3 year period beginning 2008-09. This is a challenging target for the
Council and will require savings of approximately £2 million to be identified. Under the
Concordat, the Council will be able to retain savings to meet its own priorities.

1.6.2  The Council has prepared an Efficiency Savings Plan to address how it intends to
meet the Scottish Government's target. A Strategic Board for Performance Improvement
will oversee the monitoring of the target. The Council has identified the following five
themes where efficiency savings can be obtained:

Asset Management
Absence Management
Procurement

Shared Services; and
Streamlining Bureaucracy

G L=

1.6.3  The Council has not yet set out how it will measure and report efficiency savings
generated from the plan and performance systems are not yet in place to measure outputs
and outcomes to support the measurement of efficiency. In addition, efficiency savings
targets are not yet linked to corporate priorities and incorporated within the budget setting
process and this may not provide sufficient challenge to Council departments to achieve
planned savings.

Action plan points 7 and 8

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 100

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

2 Audit Committee arrangements

21 Background

211 To assist audit committees in local government in effectively discharging their
functions, CIPFA issued guidance in 2004 A udit conmittee prindples in loail authorities in
Satland: a guidance rote. This outlines the principles audit committees should adopt in
addressing their functions across the following key areas:

the role and remit of the audit committee;

audit committee membership, induction and training;

audit committee meetings;

arrangements to monitor the systems of internal control;
arrangements for financial reporting and regulatory matters; and
establishing relationships with internal and external audit.

212  Aspart of our review we have evaluated the extent to which the Council's audit
committee arrangements meet the principles set out in the CIPFA guidance.

2.2 Role and Remit
Terms of Reference

221  The audit committee requires formal terms of reference that set out its core
functions. The terms of reference should be approved by the Council and reviewed on an
annual basis. Terms of reference for the audit committee were agreed at the Council's
meeting on 17 May 2007 and cover the following duties:

promote internal controls, financial risk and governance;

develop an anti-fraud culture;

promote good practice;

agree internal audit strategy and plans;

receive external audit strategy and plans, and review external audit reports;

review financial performance and to report on the internal control environment;
and

® exercise a governance role over management.

222  Our review found that while the current terms of reference meet many of the best
practice principles included in the CIPFA guidance , further improvements could be made
by incorporating sections on:

o the committee's responsibility to review the annual accounts process and review the
accounts on behalf of the Council;

o therights of the Committee to call any officer to account for their actions during
the year;

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 101

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

o therole of the committee in the formal establishment of internal audit - including
rights of access to the chair by the Head of Internal Audit;

o the requirement for the committee to consider the annual internal audit report and
annual governance statement;

o the frequency of meetings and required quorum arrangements; and

e training arrangements for committee members.

Action plan points 9
Annual Report

223  The audit committee should also prepare an annual report to the Council, which
sets out the committee's work and performance during the year. The report should include
confirmation that the system of risk management in the authority is adequate in identifying
all relevant risks and allowing the authority to understand the appropriate management of
those risks; and confirmation that there are no areas of significant duplication or omission in
the systems of governance in the authority that have come to the committee’s attention and
not been adequately resolved.

224  Wenoted that the audit committee did not produce an annual report for the 2006-
07 financial year, but has produced one for 2007-08. For 2008-09, the report should also
provide a self review of the audit committee's performance over the financial year. CIPFA
have produced a template to assist audit committees in performing their self review.

Action plan point 10

2.3 Membership, induction and training

Chartr

231  Akeyfeature of a successful audit committee is the appointment of a strong chair,
with relevant skills and depth of interest in local government. It is also essential that the
chair is apolitical, and CIPFA guidance recommends that the chair should not be a member
of the executive.

232  The current chair of the audit committee, is not an elected member and has
significant commercial experience. In our view, the additional independence provided by
this arrangement goes beyond the minimum good practice requirement and improves
overall scrutiny and governance within the Council.

Membership

233  The current audit committee is comprised of seven members with five Councillor
members (three members from the Coalition group, and two others), and two non-
Councillor members. The terms of reference state that none of the Councillor members of
the committee should be a Spokesperson, Deputy Spokesperson or Member of the
Executive.

234 However, we noted that one member of the audit committee is also a Deputy
Spokesperson and this may limit the effectiveness of overall scrutiny within the committee.

Action plan point 77

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 102

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

Induction and traimimng

235 Itis essential that tailored induction and training is provided to audit committee
members, covering the diverse topics and subjects that are included within the committee's
remit.

235  We noted that members received an extensive induction programme following the
2007 elections, and this covered key areas relevant to the audit committee, including finance
and accountancy, internal and external audit and risk management.

23.6  However, there is no formal training programme specifically tailored to the role of
audit committee members and this may limit the continued effectiveness of scrutiny going
forward.

Action plan point 12

2.4 Meetings

241  The audit committee meets four times per year, and as far as possible, the timing of
meetings is scheduled to meet the business and governance needs of the Council, including
receipt of the external audit plan and annual reports.

242  From our attendance at audit committee meetings over the past 18 months, we
note that:

e an agenda is produced and distributed with relevant papers in advance of the
meeting;

e aregjster of attendance is maintained by the Board secretary;

e relevant Council officers, including Head of Strategic Finance and the Internal
Audit Manager, are in regular attendance;

e declarations of interests are sought at the beginning of each meeting; and

e minutes are promptly produced and published following the meeting;

243  All Councillor members of the audit committee complete an annual declaration of
interests, which is made available for public inspection. However, there is no annual
declaration of interests for the two non-Councillor members of the audit committee.

Action plan point 13

244  The Committee has also not yet sought a private meeting with internal or external
audit.

Action plan point 4

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 103

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

2.5 Internal control

Statement of Internal Control

25.1  The audit committee has responsibility for advising the Council on the effectiveness
of internal control systems and compliance with laws and regulations. Internal control
systems should also provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, that waste or
inefficiency is avoided and that reliable financial information is produced. They should also
give reasonable assurance of effective and efficient operations.

252 A statement of internal control has now been prepared for the 2007-08 financial
statements and this represents an improvement in overall governance and control
arrangements. A key task for the audit committee going forward will be to set out
expectations for the scrutiny of wider internal control within the Council (including
operational control issues) going forward.

Action plan point 15

Risk Managgement

253  The Council has overall responsibility for ensuring that appropriate risk
management procedures are in place. The role of the audit committee is to provide
assurance to the Council that risk management procedures are effective for the Council's

purposes.

254  Our review found that risk management arrangements are reviewed by officers on a
regular basis, and risk is a standing item on the audit committee's agenda. However, we note
that risk regjsters do not yet cover aspects of operational risk and the audit committee has
not yet undertaken a formal review of the risk registers prepared by the Council.

Action plan point 15

2.6 Financial reporting and regulatory matters

26.1  The audit committee should review the Council's financial statements before they
are submitted to the full Council. The audit committee should also review the external
auditor's ISA 260 Report, Commumiartion of audit matters to those charged with grernance, and the
annual audit report.

26.2  Our review found that the audit committee performs this role in line with CIPFA
guidance.

2.7 Internal and external audit

271  Itis essential for the audit committee to have good relations with both internal and
external auditors, and to have procedures in place for reviewing, monitoring and approving
the work of internal and external audit, including;

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 104

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

e approving internal and external audit plans and strategjes;
e reviewing the outputs of internal and external audit reports; and
o allowing access for private discussions with the audit committee.

272  The audit committee currently has a good relationship with both internal and
external audit. The committee reviews all audit plans and strategies on an annual basis.
Following recommendations made in our 2006-07 audit, the audit committee now formally
receives and approves all internal audit reports, and continues to receive all reports from
external audit.

273  The audit committee does not yet, however, assess or formally consider the
performance of internal and external audit and this may limit the effectiveness of overall
scrutiny.

Action plan point 16

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 105

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

3 National Fraud Initiative

31 Introduction

3.1.1  The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) is a nationwide data matching exercise run
jointly by Audit Scotland and the Audit Commission. The NFI was initially rolled out in
Scotland as part of a two year cycle beginning 2004-05 and was principally for the audits of
councils, police and fire boards. The exercise was expanded for the 2006-07 cycle by the
inclusion of more data sets and a wider range of audited bodies.

3.12  The2006-07 exercise has nowbeen completed, and Audit Scotland reported that
across Scotland, £9.7 million of fraud, overpayments and forward savings have been
identified. The amount of savings identified by Argyll and Bute Council was £1,546.75,
relating to a housing benefit fraud.

3.1.3  Therole of external audit in NFI is to review the Council's procedures for
managing the exercise and the progress in pursuing potential frauds highlighted by the data
matching exercise.

3.2 Data submission and quality

321 Inorder to ensure that the Council complies with data protection and human rights
legislation, all data subjects had to be notified in advance that their data was to be used for
the 2006-07 exercise. We reviewed the Council's procedures and found that all data subjects
were notified in line with Audit Scotland guidance.

322  We did note however, that the Council failed to submit Form 3 (Return on Data
Protection Compliance) to the Audit Commission by the specified date of 31 September
2006. The return was eventually received by 31 March 2007.

Action plan point 17

3.3 Planning
33.1 Inorder to effectively coordinate the exercise, the Council should have a structured
approach to manage, monitor, control and deliver the NFI exercise. It is essential to the

success of the exercise that individuals are clear as to their responsibilities and the approach
to be taken.

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 106

Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

332 A planned approach should be formulated for each category of data match as some
of the reports contain different types of matches. The Council has not developed a protocol
to document the investigation procedures for each type of match. As a result, there is no
established procedure for ensuring that a common approach is taken in recording the
investigations, and in retaining the supporting evidence.

Action plan point 18

3.4 Investigation

34.1 The Council should have a planned and prioritised approach to reviewing matches
and determining the reasons why an investigation should not take place. The Council
should apply the data filters recommended by the Audit Commission when prioritising
matches and determining which matches to investigate.

342  Our review found that the Council investigated all the high priority matches after
applying the recommended filters. However, we noted that:

o officers did not routinely complete all their investigations on the NFI application;

o there was a lack of audit evidence as to how the matches were investigated and
cleared; and

e there was no evidence that any of the available monitoring reports were reviewed by
the co-ordinator.

Action plan point 19
3.5 Monitoring and Reporting

3.5.1 Inorder to assess the effectiveness of the NFI exercise, it is essential that
procedures are in place to monitor the progress of data matches. This includes:

what matches are being reviewed;
by whom;

within what timescales; and

stage reached.

352  The absence of a control record increases the risk that the Council does not
complete the investigations by order of priority, and within the appropriate timescale. Our
review found that the Council did not maintain a formal control record throughout the
exercise. As a result of this, many of the data matches were not processed in a timely
manner.

3.5.3  The results of the NFI exercise should be also reported to the Senior Management
Team, and Council members.

Action plan points 20 and 21

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

A Action plan

Financial management and budgetary control

Recommendation

Management Response

Implementation Date

1 There is scope to make the linkage between corporate Medium The Council should undertake a further Head of Strategic Finance - Planning and February 2009.
priorities and budget setting more transparent. review of its budget setting budgeting arrangements will be further

arrangements to better demonstrate developed in the coming planning and
how corporate priorities are prioritised budgeting exercise.
within the budget.

2 Budget monitoring reports may not be fully effective in Medium The Council should adopt commitment Head of Strategic Finance - An approach Ongoing as part of BV
highlighting potential budget variances sufficiently early in accounting principles when preparing to addressing this recommendation will be review implementation.
the financial year for corrective action to be taken. budget monitoring reports. developed as part of the implementation

of the Best Value review of Strategic
Finance.

3 There is a lack of evidence that budget virements are Medium The Council should ensure that all A report of budget virements will be October 2008.
being notified to the Head of Strategic Finance in budget virements are authorised in prepared each month and reviewed to
accordance with the Council's Financial and Security accordance with established procedures. ensure proper authorisation.

Regulations. A report of budget virements processed
should be prepared for review by the
Head of Strategic Finance on a monthly
basis to provide evidence that
procedures are being followed.

4 The Council has earmarked £3.2 million of the general Low The Council should identify specific The future use of the fund is being Noted - no action
fund reserve for social housing projects. This is funded projects to apply these reserves or considered within the context set by the proposed.
from the Council Tax charge on 2nd homes in the Argyll release them to be applied to other Local Housing Strategy. Projects will be
and Bute area. The Council has agreed a policy for corporate priorities. highlighted for consideration through

projects to be funded from the reserve and so far have
provisionally allocated £0.642 million against two

projects.

collaborative working with the Scottish
Government’s Housing Regeneration
Division and local RSL's. Developing a
programme of projects is dependent upon
RSL's brining forward projects in line
with the Local Housing Strategy and
having these appraised for VEM by
Scottish Government’s Housing
Regeneration Division and with a funding
gap established. The current funding

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

/0 8bed



Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

Recommendation

Management Response

regime for RSL’s will make it difficult to

Implementation Date

develop a medium term programme.
There is scope to improve arrangements to provide Medium The Council should ensure there are The report submitted to the Council with February 2009.
greater transparency around departmental plans to apply clear plans to apply all earmarked the unaudited accounts lists the
all earmarked reserves. reserves. department, description and reason for
carry forward for each element of unspent
grants, unspent contribution and
budgetary underspends to be carried
forward. Whilst consideration will be
given to what form of challenge there
should be on proposed carry forwards the
Council should avoid a situation whereby
it is setting the budget on a 3 year basis
but enforcing annuality in terms of
allowing the carry forward of underspends
(or overspends). Further consideration
will be given to how this recommendation
might or might not be implemented.
The revised target for unearmarked reserves has been High The Council should develop a policy Head of Strategic Finance - The current February 2009.
calculated to reflect available funds as part of the budget for determining the level of approach is based around general
setting process, rather than as part of a risk based unearmarked reserves based on past consideration of inflation and interest rate
assessment of the reserves balance required to be held to experience and an evaluation of risk. risk and historic budgetary performance
meet contingencies and respond to effectively to and is laid out in a report to members as
unforeseen events. part of the budget pack each year. In view
of the audit recommendation a more
specific set of criteria will be developed
for 2009-10.
The Council has not yet set out how it will measure and High The Council should put in place Head of Strategic Finance - This will be December 2008.
report efficiency savings generated and performance mechanisms to record efficiency addressed.
systems are not yet in place to measure outputs and savings generated from the plan.
outcomes to support the measurement of efficiency.
Progress against the efficiency savings
target should be reported on a regular
basis to management and members.
Efficiency savings targets are not yet linked to corporate Medium The Council should embed planned Head of Strategic Finance - Efficiency February 2009.
priorities and incorporated within the budget setting efficiency savings within budget setting savings are currently budgeted in services
process and this may not provide sufficient challenge to arrangements. but a review of the efficiency savings plan

Council departments to achieve planned savings.

as part of the coming planning and
budgeting round will review how it can be
inked to corporate priorities.

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

80| obed



Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

Audit Committee arrangements

Recommendation

Management Response

Implementation Date

9 The current terms of reference for the audit committee Medium The Council should review the current Internal Audit Manager - The terms of December 2008.
are not in line with best practice in the following areas: terms of reference against CIPFA reference will be updated to reflect this
. responsibility of the committee to review the guidance, and ensure all relevant areas recommendation.
Council's financial statements; are covered. The terms of reference
o therights of the committee to call officers to should be IjeWGWEd and updated on a
account; regular basis.
o the responsibilities of internal audit to the
committee;
o the responsibilities of the committee to
consider the internal audit opinion and annual
governance statements.
10 The audit committee has committed to producing an Medium The audit committee should ensure its Audit Committee - The audit committee June 2009.
annual report for 2008-09. We note that the annual report 2008-09 annual report also incorporates a did produce an annual report for 2007-
should also incorporate a review of the audit committee's review of the committee's performance. 08. The audit committee will take advice
performance over the financial year. on appropriate tools/approaches with
regard to self assessment of its own
performance.
11 A member of the audit committee is also a Deputy Medium The Council should review the audit Head of Democratic Services and December 2008.
Spokesperson and this does not comply with the committee membership to ensure it Governance - Noted. This will be drawn
committee's terms of reference. complies with the terms of reference. to the attention of the Council.
12 There is no formal training programme tailored to meet Medium The audit committee should develop an Audit Committee - As noted in the December 2008.

the needs of audit committee members.

annual workplan setting out items to be
considered at each meeting.

This workplan should include a training
programme for members timed to match
the business and governance needs of the
Council (for example, financial training
in May in advance of accounts approval
in June).

We have some examples of workplans
we can share and can also assist the
Council in developing its training
programme for audit committee
members.

report members have been provided
with extensive induction training. The
audit committee will develop an annual
work plan and consider how to establish
its own training programme within that
overall workplan.

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

601 8bed



Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

Recommendation

Management Response

Implementation Date

13 There is no annual declaration of interests for the two Medium The non Councillor members of the Head of Democratic Services and December 2008.
non-Councillor members of the audit committee. audit committee should make a similar Governance and Audit Committee Chair
annual declaration of interest as that and Vice Chair - This requires the
required for Councillor members. voluntary agreement of both the Audit
Chairman and Vice Chairman. The Head
of Democratic Services and Governance
will discuss this matter both parties.
14 The audit committee has not yet held private meetings Low The audit committee should consider Audit Committee - The audit committee December 2008.
with internal or external audit. whether it should hold private meetings has not identified a need to meet in
with internal or external audit. private with internal or external audit
and no request has been made by
external or internal audit to meet the
audit committee in private. However the
audit committee will consider as part of
the development of its annual work plan
when it might wish to have private
meetings with external audit and internal
audit.
15 A key task for the audit committee going forward will be Medium The audit committee should set out Audit Committee - The audit committee June 2009.
to set out expectations for the scrutiny of wider clearer arrangements for the scrutiny of recognises the need for the scrutiny of
performance and internal control within the Council performance and wider operational wider internal control within the
going forward. control matters. Council, especially in the embedding of
Corporate Governance across the
Council and its reliance on Council risk
registers.
16 The audit committee does not yet, however, assess or Low The committee should formally assess Audit Committee - On annual basis a June 2009 and
formally consider the performance of internal and the performance of internal and external formal assessment of both external and September 2009.

external audit and this may limit the effectiveness of
overall scrutiny.

audit annually.

internal audit will be undertaken by the
audit committee. A proposed approach
would have an annual assessment of
internal audit in June and an assessment
of external audit in September.

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

0L obed



Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

No Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response Implementation Date
National Fraud Initiative
17 The Council did not submit Form 3 (Audit Low The Council should ensure that all Lead Internal Audit Manager - Form 3 Completed.
Commission Return on Data Protection Compliance) relevant forms for the NFI exercise are (Audit Commission Return on Data
in line with the deadline of 30 September 2006. submitted to the Audit Commission in Protection Compliance) is detailed in the
line with the specified deadlines. Project Plan for 2008 — 2009 along with
other key dates. This was passed to
Grant Thornton on the 18 of August
2008 for 2008-09.
18 The Council did not adopt a formal plan for the NFI Medium The Council should prepare a formal Lead Internal Audit Manager - A Project Completed
exercise. plan for the NFI exercise which Plan for 2008 — 2009 was passed to
details: Grant Thornton on the 18th of August
*  roles and responsibilities 2008. Since this date regular plan
®  training requirements updates have been passed to Grant
*  timescales for completion Thomton to advise progress against key
*  monitoring and reporting dates and actions for the 2008 — 09 NFI
arrangements exercise.
19 The Council did not adequately monitor the progress Medium The Council should introduce a Lead Internal Audit Manager - A control Completed
of the NFI exercise, and there was no overall control control record for the next NFI document has been prepared and passed
record maintained of cases being investigated. exercise which details: to Grant Thornton, which has been
¢ matches being reviewed; accepted as addressing this
*  responsible officer; recommendation.
*  completion; and
®  stage reached.
20 Formal reports are not produced for the Senior Medium Regular monitoring reports on the Lead Internal Audit Manager - A formal With effect from 30
Management Team or members on the progress of the NFI exercise should be reported to reporting document was prepared and September 2008
NFI exercise. Senior Management and members to Grant Thornton on the 18t of
which detail the progress of the August 2008. This has been accepted.
exercise. Reporting will commence at the end of
September when key milestones have
been achieved.
21 The Council did not make full use of the NFI Low The Council should ensure all staff Lead Internal Audit Manager - The Completed.
application. We noted that there was a lack of evidence who use the NFI application are aware results coming from the NFI exercise
on file as to the outcome of cleared cases, and there of its features and are able to process are of limited use to Argyll & Bute as it
was no evidence that any of the control features of the data matches in line with Audit supplements existing systems identifying
application were utilised. Scotland guidance. fraud. This has resulted in limited use of
the system by staff. The NFI have on-

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

L1} obed



Argyll and Bute Council
2007-08 Audit - Interim Management Report

Finding

Recommendation

Management Response

line training for the 2008-09 exercise and
users will be encouraged to view this
I~

Implementation Date

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

21| ebed



o Grant Thornton

www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

"Grant Thormton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd ('Grant Thornton
International'’). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms independently.

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication

€| | obed



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 115 Agenda ltem 15

Argyll and Bute Council

Progress Implementation Review- Internal Audit

30 May 2008



Page 116

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08 Audit
Progress Implementation Review- Internal Audit

Contents Page
1  Executive Summary 1
Appendices

Appendix A - Updated Action Plan

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 117

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08 Audit
Progress Implementation Review- Internal Audit

1 Executive Summary

Introduction

Internal audit is an assurance function that primarily provides an independent and objective
opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes the
achievement of the Council’s objectives. It objectively examines, evaluates and reports on
the adequacy of internal control as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and
effective use of resources. As such, it is a central element of the Council’s overall
governance arrangements.

The Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom (the
Code) issued by CIPFA in 2006 sets out good practice in delivering internal audit services.

We reviewed the Council's internal audit department against the requirements of the Code
and reported our findings in our 2006-07 audit. This report details our follow up review of
the Council's progress in implementing our recommendations from our report, Review of
Internal Audit, issued in May 2007.

Findings

Our review on the progress of implementation of prior year recommendations found that
only 4 out of the 12 outstanding recommendations from our 2006-07 report have been fully
implemented. Of the remaining recommendations, 6 were not implemented within the
specified timeframe and 2 were in progress at the time of our audit. Table 1 summaries the
progress of implementation across each of the Code standards.

Table 1: Summary of the progress of implementation

Standard Implemented Not Implemented In Progress
Scope of Internal Audit 1
Independence 2

Audit Committees 2 1
Staffing, Training and Continuing 1

Professional Development

Audit Strategy and Planning 1

Undertaking Audit Work 1

Reporting 1 2

TOTAL 4 6 2

Of the remaining outstanding recommendations, one was regarded as high risk, four were
related as medium risk and one as low risk.

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 118

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08 Audit
Progress Implementation Review- Internal Audit

The outstanding high risk recommendation relates to ensuring that the audit days allocated
to the audit plan match reflects the current capacity of the internal audit department. We
noted that the internal audit manager is currently on secondment to the shared services team
and this is not reflected in the resource availability for the 2008-09 audit plan.

The medium risk recommendations that remain outstanding include:
e reviewing the requirement for a 'head of internal audit' position;

e ensuring that any internal audit staff who go on secondment to other areas of the
Council is in line with agreed policies; and

e ensuring the rationale for awarding a high controls assurance grading is reflected in
the working papers on file.

At the time of our audit, we noted that the internal audit manual had not been updated to
take account of the requirements of the 2006 Code of Practice. We understand that this has
now been implemented and the a revised internal audit manual has been issued to staff.

We noted that 1 recommendation was not yet due at the time of our audit. We note that the
audit committee intends to produce a report to the Council by June 2008 on the internal
control framework, risk management and governance arrangements during the financial year
to 31 March 2008. This would meet the Council's commitment in relation to our
recommendation on this matter.

Way Forward

We have summarised management's progress of implementation on recommendations made
in our 2007 Review of Internal Audit Report in Appendix A.

Management should seek to ensure that the outstanding recommendations that have not
been implemented within the specified timeframe are prioritised for completion.

Status of our report

This report is part of a continuing dialogue between the Council and Grant Thornton UK
LLP and is not, therefore, intended to cover every matter which came to our attention. Our
procedures are designed to support our audit opinion and they cannot be expected to
identify all weaknesses or inefficiencies in the Council's systems and work practices.

The report is not intended for use by third parties and we do not accept responsibility for
any reliance that third parties may place on it.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the officers who have been involved in this
review for their assistance and co-operation.

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



pantasal syBL ||y "dT7 MN uoluioy] Juel 800z @

"800C 1oquiardeg
Ul UOTIRISPISUOD JOJ 99))TWIUI0D

JIpne 9y} 03 pajudsaid oq [[Im pue pajjeIp
u29q sey Ao1jod JUQWIPUOIIS [BWIO] Y
*Korjod poaI3e oy} Yyim SUI] UI oIk JIpne
[BUIDIUI WIOIJ SJUSWPUOIS AUL AINSUD
PINOYS [IOUNOD) SY ], "WE) SAITAIIS
PaIByS AU} 0] PAPUOIIS UAAq A[JUAIAI Sy
IoSeUrW JIPNE [RUISUI 9} 1By} JJ0U I\

"L00T AInf

"SIB9A 7 1XJU QU) 10}

PIAJOAUL U2q 9ARY A9} YOIYM UI SeaIe
I9A0D JOU [[IM JJBIS PIPU0IIS AQaIaym
Korjod & 9onpoid [[1m J1pne [euIiu]
"SJUSWIPUOIAS FULINDAS UT [NJSSIIONS

are pue A[dde Aoy axoym [rouUNo0)

9y JO Jurpueisiopun I9peoiq B ures

0} JJ1S JIPNE [RUIAUI MO[[E 0) [BIOLJOUdq
SIJI ‘IOAdMOY sannp [euonerado

‘postwordwod

jou st Jusuniedap ay) jo
douapuadapul pue JurjIom 9ANIJ
9} 2INSUL 0} JUSWPUOIAS WOIJ
Surunar Jye)s SurSeuewr 105 Ao1j0d
& do[oAap p[noys Ipne [euIdju]
‘sonnp reuonerado Aue aaey Jou op
SI0}IpNE [BUIRJUI JeY) AINSUS P[NOYS

“JUSWIPUOIIS
1197} JO pua Y} Je pageuewl A[QA1}09)J9

9q jou juouuiredap 9y} 0) WINJAI I3Y) P[NOYS
s1031pne Jo souapuadapur ay) asrurordwod

Page 119

poyusudduy 0N aye)IopUN JOU Op JIPNE [BUINU] [1ouUn0)) Ay “o[qissod IOAINY A wnipapy AW JIpNE [BUISIUT WOIJ SUSWPUONRS | ¢
duapuddapug
"L00T KeIy 20us
9oe[d Ul UOIBISIUTWPE MU Y} SULMO[[O]
2IMONISAI A} JUNOIIE OJUT ANB)
0} ‘UONOAs PNLIJ oY) SUIPN[OUT JUSWNOOP
s[oym sy Sunepdn jo ssaoord *SUONESTISOAUT PNEI] UT JIPNE [RUIIUT
3L U1 [[1S B1E [19UN0D) Y “LONMISUOD 8007 11dy 10 3[01 A [1e19p A[EoL03dS 10U S30p
[1oUn07 943 JO UOISIOA JUSLIMD “Jipne ooueping oy, ‘pnerj paoadsns Suniodar
S U papn[oul S1 pney Jo UONE3NSIAUL ‘spnexy [RUIDIUI JO 9[OI ) 0] OUAIJAI JJBIS 10J 20UBPING 9pN[OUI pue suone[n3ay
U3 UL 90X SIpNE [ELUIUL UO 5UEPING pa1oadsns Jo uonesnsoaur oy urJipne | - dyoads opnjour o) prery payoadsns AILINOOG PUR [BIDURUL] OY) UTIIM PI[IEIOP
[BUIUI JO 901 A} ASTUS00a1 0) PAPUIWE Sunodaa Jye1s 10j ooueping, are uondni100 pue pneij Jo uonuadid
ssaadoaq uf 3q [[14 UONMNSUOY) [IDUN0D) YL, s11 91epdn pInOYS [10UN0D) Y, wnipajy ay) 10J SaIpaooid s, ouno)) Ay, I
JIpny [ewIdju] Jo 3dodg
a1ep uonejuswRdun
8007 A®JAl 18 UOnIsog pue asuodsay JusuRSeuRyy POSIE UONBPUIWWO0I3Y SO L00Z K@l - Surpuig | oN

uvonejuawdun Jo ssaxsord ay) Jo Arewwung - v xipuaddy

Hpny [eulaju] -malnay uolnejuawajdw] ssaiboid
HpNy 80-200¢ [19uno aing pue ||AB1y




pantasal SiYBU IV “dT17 YN uoluloyl Juess 8o0g ©

Page 120

‘SjuowaurIIR
90URUIDAOS pue JUSWIFeURW
YSLI JIOMIWERL] [0NU0D ‘sjuowagueLR
‘Sjuswajess [EOUBUL 80-L00C HeIP o JO [RUIDIUI S,[IOUNO)) ) JO MAIA 20URUIOAOS pUB JUSWIDSRURW YSLI
[eaoxdde oy yam 9p1outod 01 80T dunf $)1 SutuIpno pue 1eak o SuLnp SJIOMAUIRI] [01)UOD [BUIANUI §JIOUNOL) ) JO
ul [1ouno) ay) 03 03 0} J1odar enuue Uy *900Z Mudy Ur [1ouno)) ot 0 11odar | Iom )1 SUISLIEWWNS [I9UN0.) AY) 0 MIA )1 Sutuno pue Ieak o Surmp yiom
B Jumpruuqgns 0) MarA B yim aaptwwod | jrodar renuue ue Surredard ropisuod )1 SursLewIwuns [1oUno)) 0} 1odal [enuue
ssaagoag uy npne 1511y oy 01 Ind aq [[IM STYT, PINOYS 9YTWIWIOD JIPNE Y], wnIpay ue oredad Jou so0p SoNIWIWIOd JIpNE YL | ¢
"L00T AInf
*SSQIPPE 0 SPAAU I SANSST
sueyd uonoe 1O SYSII PIAJOSIIUN JEYM I0/pUE
PUE SOLIBWIWNS 9ANNIAXS 0] $110doI pUB | YIOM JBY) WOIJ ) UBD )T 9OURINSSE
“OONILIOD iphe Ay} sa1doo [Ny woIy ALl [[IM STY], YoM JEYM PUBISIOPUN 0] 92))TUIUOD
0} patI0dar MOU SISO UPNE [BUIIU] | 1150y reursjur jo Suniodar oy Surpreser aU) MO[[® 0} [TRIOP JUAIOLINS “00NIWIWOD
suondo oy} SUTUIINO 99IWWOD JIpne Ul 99)IUIWOD JIpne 3y} 0) pajiodar jipne 9y} 0) payiodar jou A[IUaLIND
pojuswaduy 1XaU 3y 0) panIuqns 3q [[14 1oda1 v 3Q PNOYS YI0M JIPNE [PUIU] ySig aIe yIoM JIpne [eutul woly sSutpuy oYL, | 4
dapImwo) ypny
*MOIADI 1OpUN
surewa1 uonisod JIPNE [BUINUI JO Peay, © uounedap og) UG
JO UONEAIO dY, JUSWIDIZT A} PPUAIXD sonqqisuodsax pue sour untodor  JIpNE [euIo)ul
MoU Sey [IDUNOY Ay} PUL "gOOT YOIBIN ¢ '800C 1MV | girep djoy prnom pue jipne [ewssur J0 peay, ® jo Juounurodde oY) SpUSTIO00I
uo papus diyszoupred y1pne [euISIUT YL, Jo opyoid oty aste1 pinom sy, 1sod Yoty M 9po)) 3y im A7duwod jou
-diyszomred Jipne TeuIoIuT 9Y) JO JIpNE [PUIDIUT JO PEaY © AJeuSIsap $20p ST, "uonisod JIpne [RUIAUI JO Peay
pojuswd[dwy 10N | Pus oY) 12 POMIAI 9 [[1M UONEMIS ST, A[[eWLIO] P[NOYS [1OUN0)) Y], wnipay | 9Surs v yim a1exado Jou sa0p [19UN0)) Y, ¢
a1ep uonejuswRdur
8007 AeJAl 18 UonIsog pue asuodsay JuswRSeuRyy POSIEI UOHEPUIWWO0I3Y SR L00Z K@l - Surpuig | oN

Hpny [eulalu] -malnay uolnejuawajdw] ssaiboid

HpNy 80-200¢ [19uno aing pue ||AB1y




pantasal SiYBU IV “dT17 YN uoluloyl Juess 8o0g ©

“UONEBIO[[B 90IN0SAI
AU} UT PIJOJ[JAI JOU ST 6(0-800¢ Jo 1red
AJIB9 9} UI JUSWIPUOIIS S JoSeuewl JIpne
[BUISIUL ) JBY) 9JOU A\ "9 TWWOD
1Ipne yoIey oy} 03 pajuasaxd sem 110¢
-200¢ ueld o1391e1)s JIpNE [BUIUI Y,

auoq
“90NIWTOD

Jipne 9y} 0} uonenis Ay} jo suntodar
pUB MIIARI SNONUNUOD B 9q [[IM Y,
“JJe1s 10B1U0D AQ PAIDA0D ] P[NOMm
A9} Je[} pUEB SOIOUBIBA AIoM A1) JeY)

Juounredap
ay Jo Aoeded Juarind 9y Uuo paseq
J[qe[reAr sAep Jipne [enjoe ay) J09[JoI
pinoys Suruued Jipne J10J uonL[NOELD

"9[qB[IBAE S90INOSAI [BNJOR
9} UO Paseq JOU ST UOTIBIO[[B 90IN0SAI Y} JT
PRISAI[Op 9q Jouued uefd Jipne oy} jey JSU €
sta1ay], ‘peredard sem ueld ayj own ayj 18
JIOMm JIpNE JOJ 9[R[IBARUN PUR JUIWPUOIS
U0 AIoM OUM SIOJIpNE 91y} Y} £q Jow

9q 03 pajoadxa sAep GGG popnyour ued jipne

Page 121

pajududdwy JoN | Patels 80/L00¢ 1of ueld yipne [enuue oy, JuowaInbar 001n0sar oy, YSIH | L0-9007 24} 03 pajedo[[e sKep Jipne [210) Y, 8
Suruueld pue £39je0)S NpNy
uowdoroaap

JJe1s pre pue spoau Sururen aInny "JUQUISSASSE SPAdU J1JBWIA)SAS

JIoj ydwoid e se j0e pnoys ssedo01d © 0) PaYUI[ Jou a1e juawiredap Jrpne [euIUI

[esrexdde [enuue ayJ, ‘103pne jo oy Jo spoau juowrdoforap Jjers pue Sururen

[9A9] yoea Jo parmbar sarousjadwos oImny oy} 9nsare sy -yordxe apew

) pUE SIS oy} aunjap pue (YAd) jou a1k saAnd9[qo souewIofrad pue pauryep

80-L00T 3utnp Ydd MITATY U dO[oA9(] QOUBULIOJIO] 10U oI 9peIS J0)Ipne [Yoea Jo parmbar

& pajduwod axey Jeis uoueusad [Ty "L00T Ang oy Jo syuawaambal oy dur| soroua)eduwos pue syoys oy, “Aorjod [rouno))

“JIPNE [BUIAUI UM JJe)S JO SIOqUISUI ur [estexdde [enuue UB 9ATOIRI JjBIS )M QUI] UL SJUSWISSIsse douewiofiod
payududduy [Te Jo} paonponural oq I SYAd [Te 38y} QINSU P[NOYS [IOUNO)) Y[, ySig [enuue 9AIQ09I JOU OP JJels JIpne [euIdju] L
JudwdoPAd( [BUOISSIJOIJ SUINUUO)) pue JUrUIRd ], ‘Suljje)s

‘SI0JOBIUOD

own 1ed om) £q partuedwoooe

‘aA1y 03 dn seakordwe owm [[ny Sunye)
80-L00C SULIND SIJUIEI) 0M] PIIINIOA
sey juauniedap JIipne [eUISIUI YT,

*L00 Joquaydeg £q 9oerd ur Suroq
JJBIS 0] MIIA B )IM SYOOM MOJ IXSU Y} UL

REINREIl)
JOW 0) PAJINOSAI A[[NJ Ie JIpne

‘S9AT}03[q0

SI1 J99W 0] PAJINOSAI AJ[NJ JOU APULIND ST
1IpNE [RUIDUI ‘IoAdmoy ‘T[ejiIoys ay [11F dioy
0} s1030enuod swn-ired swos pajurodde
sey [rouno)) 9y, yusuniedap yipne [euIS)UI

pajuduwddwy | 90uUaUIOD [[IM $S9001d JUSUNINIOAI AU, | [BUISIUI AINSUS P[NOYS [IOUNOD) Y], Y31y Q) UI SAIOUBIBA ¢ A[JUSLIND I8 I, 9
Jjep uonejudwduir
8007 ABIAl 3& UonIsoq pue dsuodsay JudwISeuRyA PISIed UOI)BPUIWITO0INY bR | L00T ABJAl - Suipur | oN

Hpny [eulalu] -malnay uolnejuawajdw] ssaiboid
HpNy 80-200¢ [19uno aing pue ||AB1y




Page 122

pantasal SiYBU IV “dT17 YN uoluloyl Juess 8o0g ©

‘s3urpury Jipne 0} paydjeu

SAem[e J0U SI JIpne [euIdiul Aq papraoid
Surpei3 aoueInsse [[BIA0 ) 1By}
Surputy 310da1 /()-9Q(QZ INO PAWLIFUOD
syodax Jipne §()-£00T JO MIIAAL INQ

“UOIBIOPISUOD
01T USY®) OS[e I8 Sasuodsal saa)Ipny

<y
s1oded Sunjiom Ay} JO MIIAAI JaZRUBIN

‘s1oded

Sunpiom Funzoddns unym pejoarjar
A[1e910 ST SUIpeI3 9OUBINSSE S[ONUOD
431y © SurpIeme 10j s[euonel

‘uerd

UOI}O® 9} Ul PAUIRIUOD SUOTIEPUIWWOIAI
oy pue 110da1 JIpne AY) UM SSurpury
parelap a3 03 puodsarios 0y xeadde jou prp
QOURINSSE SJONUOD 0) UOTIB[I UT popIeme

pajuswadwy JoN 1PNy 9y UI PIISA0D 3q [[IM SIYL | 9y 18y} 2INSUD P[NOYS [IOUNOY) Y, wnIpap Surpeis oy ‘sprodar yipne oy Jo owos uf | ]
JuawuSIsse Ipne yoes 1oy pariodar
JuowuSIsse SUOISNOU0D JOURINSSE [[BIDAO A} O) A[1BI[D
. J1IpNE Yora 10J paniodal SUOISN[OU0D arouwt uorurdo sty yury 01 9doos st a1y,
SJUWIATULLIE Y (IIM PIYSES 1M ‘pajuowd[dw] | ouemsse [[e1oA0 9y £q partoddns “SJUSWASURLIE [OIUOD [BIOURUL]
pue £0-900¢ 10§ Hodar juouroSeuet ‘syon | A[Iea[d aIouwr aq pinoys sjuswesueLIe [BUISIUI S[IOUNOY) 9Y) JO SSOUSATIORJJO
JIPNE [BUIANUL ) PIMIIAL I G-T JO JUQUISSASSE SIAIS ST, "UONIAS [OIUOD [RIOURUT] [RUIAIUT oy uo uorurdo pue 1eak oy 10y sSurpury
S9A1109[qO JSUTESE JUSUWISSASSE pue S IOUN0D) AY) JO SSAUAANIAJ K9y Iom sy Surstrewwuns 11odar [enuue

pajuswadury UOISN[OUOO [[RISA0, Y UL JUOP ST SIYL, Y} UO UOISN[OU0D S JIPNE [PUINU] Mo | ue yum JuowaSeuew opraoid Jipne [eu] | (]

Sunaoday
“PAIUIWNIOP
‘powtoyrad Sureq Sunsa) ysSnoxypem se Suneiodo seam waysks ay) ey
JO 9OUSPIA OU SEA 1ot JE) punoy wiIjuod 0) paurioyrad 1s9) YSnoy) yem
80-L00T utinp SwasKs [eroueuly £ay *3[1J UO SLIBYIMO]] PUB SIJOU SWA)SAS OU SeM 210 JBY) PAIOU A\ “UALIOpUN
UO SO JIpne [EUIRUL 94} JO MIIASLINO o 1od se Sunerado are sjonuoo 1Ipne yoea 10j paonpoid a1om sajou
1R WILJUOD 0) 159) Y3noy) [em © WoIsAS PaIRIOp JBY) PUNOJ SWAISAS [BIOURUL]

pojuswdwy J0N *80/L00T Ul UOP 9q [[IM SIY], | 9pN[OUI P[NOYS UOTLIUIWNIOP IIPNY MO | 9100 UO JIOM SJIPNE [PUINIUI JO MAIAJIL INQ) 6

3044 BIPNY Sunye)epun

a1ep uonejuswRdur
800C ABIAl 18 UONISOq pue asuodsay JuswadeurRyy PISIEI UONEPUSWITO0IY SN | L00Z ABIAl - Surpurg | oN

Hpny [eulalu] -malnay uolnejuawajdw] ssaiboid
HpNy 80-200¢ [19uno aing pue ||AB1y




pantasal syBL ||y "dT7 MN uoluioy] Juel 800z @

Page 123

‘JJe1s 03 panssi
pue pajedwod ueaq ouIs sey [enuew
JIpNE [BUIOUI 9} JeY) PUBISISPUN A\

‘ypne
INO JO W) JY) J MITAI IOJ [qR[IBAR
JOU SBA [BNUBW JIPNE [RUISIUT Y],

9poD) oYy
0} UOTSTASI Y0k SUIMO[[0] PIMAIAI

9q P[NOYS [eNUBIA Y], "901oRIJ

‘JuaweaIde diysroulred oy jo 1red se

"L00T AInf JO 9p0D) 90T Y Jo sjuawarmbar OINJY 03 pausisse s1 [enuew ay) Sunepdn
jpne ‘DN a3 109321 03 pajepdn st 103 Ayiqisuodsar oy, €007 I9qUISAON Ul
ano Jo dwr 3y} je pajudud[dury JoN M uonouUN{uod Ul uop oq (14 SIY], |  [eNUBIA Y3 JBY) POPUSWIWOIAI ST ] wnipdy | perepdn jse[ sem [enuew Jipne [eUIUI YL, | T
djep uonejudwIduil
8007 ABJAl J& uonisog pue 3suodsay JUIUIFRUBIA] PISsIBI UOI)BPUIUIIOIY SRy L00Z ACJA - Surpurj | oN

Hpny [eulaju] -malnay uolnejuawajdw] ssaiboid

Hpny 80-2002 119uno aing pue ||AB1y




Page 124

uoneorqnd STy} Ul [eLIdJeW AUR JO J[NSAI € st Sunoe woij Sururerjar 1o unoe uosiad Aue 0] pauoIsesd0
sso[ 10} sn £q paydadoe oq ued Ajqiqisuodsar oN -opm3 e se A[uo paredard usaq sey uoneorqnd siyg,

‘Apuepuadapul SWITY JOQUISW Ay} AQ PIIAI[OP AJB SIIIAIS
‘diystouired opImpIom € 10U 98 SWLI] JOqUIOW 9} PUE [BUONBUISIU] UOIUIOY ], JUBIL) *(,[BUOTBUIIU]
UOJUIOY T, JURID),) PIT [BUONBUIIU] UOIWIOY ], JUBID) UNIIM W) JOQUUSUI € ST JT (] UOIWIOY ], UBID)

“dryszoured Anpiqer] paywar] e ‘g7 () UOIUIOYT, JURIL) SUBSW , UOJUIOY], JURIL),

"POAIASaI SIYBL [V "dTT M UOILIOY ], JURID §00T O
3N 00 uUolUIoYI-lUBIB MMM

uojUIOY | JUBIS) o



Page 125 Agenda ltem 16

Argyll and Bute Council

Review of IT Systems and Applications

30 June 2008

* Draft for discussion



Page 126

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08
Review of IT Systems and Applications

Contents Page

Executive Summary

IT Systems and Applications 3

Appendices

A- Action plan

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 127

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08 1
Review of IT Systems and Applications

Executive Summary

Introduction

The Council is required to have arrangements in place for ensuring propriety, regularity and Best Value
in their stewardship of public funds. It is the responsibility of management to ensure that adequate
internal controls are in place which:

= ensure that resources are applied to the activities intended;
= deter fraud and irregularity; and
= ensure the most effective use of resources.

As part of our 2007-08 audit, we have reviewed the adequacy of the Council's general controls over IT
systems and applications.

Overview

The Council's key financial systems, and many of the front line services, rely on information
technology for processing, recording and reporting transactions and for providing services.
Information technology is, therefore, critical to the ability of the Council to operate effectively and
deliver high quality services to the public.

The Council also holds personal data for both employees and citizens and appropriate security and
compliance procedures are required to ensure the integrity and security of data, and to prevent and
detect fraud. The Council is also required to have appropriate systems and procedures in place to
ensure compliance with the requirements of the Data Protection Act 1998.

The Council operates a wide variety of IT systems and applications in its operations. Our review
covered the operation of the Council network, databases and applications.

Findings
Overall, we found that the Council has good controls over its IT systems, networks and applications.

In addition, the Council's arrangements in place to ensure compliance with the Data Protection Act
1998 are satisfactory.

There are no 'high risk' findings emerging from our review, however, our testing did identify a number
of weaknesses in the controls over IT systems and applications. The weaknesses identified may increase
the risk of data loss and limit the capacity for the Council to prevent and detect fraud or errors. Our
key findings included:

= user accounts for former employees are not always disabled in a timely manner;

= user accounts are not automatically disabled following a number of invalid logon attempts;

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 128

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08 2
Review of IT Systems and Applications

= some changes to software applications and databases have been implemented without
following agreed authorisation procedures; and

= the vulnerability of the IT network to outside attack is not tested on a regular basis.

Way Forward

The findings and recommendations from our review are summarised in an Action Plan that
accompanies this report in Appendix A. The Action Plan has been agreed with management and
incorporates the management response to audit recommendations.

About This Report

This report is part of a continuing dialogue between the Council and Grant Thornton UK LLP and is
not, therefore, intended to cover every matter which came to our attention. Our procedures are
designed to support our audit opinion and they cannot be expected to identify all weaknesses or
inefficiencies in the Council's systems and work practices.

The report is not intended for use by third parties and we do not accept responsibility for any reliance
that third parties may place on it.

This report includes some specific recommendations to strengthen internal controls. It is the
responsibility of management to decide the extent of the internal control system appropriate to the
Council.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to thank Council staff who have been involved in this review
for their assistance and co-operation.

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 129

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08 3
Review of IT Systems and Applications

IT Systems and Applications

Introduction

IT systems are critical to the ability of the Council to deliver services to the local community. In
addition, appropriate security procedures are required to ensure the integrity and security of data held
on the systems. The Council is also required to have appropriate systems and procedures in place to
ensure compliance with the requirements of the Data Protection Act 1998.

The Council operates a wide variety of I'T systems and applications in its operations. The Head of
Financial Services and ICT is responsible for overseeing and managing the Council's approach to IT
systems and applications.

During our audit we reviewed the key controls over IT systems and applications. We have noted the
key points arising from our audit in the sections below.

User access

In order to protect the integrity of IT systems and applications, procedures should be in place to
control physical and electronic access. This includes ensuring only authorised users have access rights
to IT systems and applications, and that privileged access is restricted to appropriate individuals.

Overall we found that the Council has good IT security policies and procedures in place which meet
expected practice.

Any user who leaves the employment of the Council should have their access rights disabled within a
timely period. We tested a sample of 15 leavers and noted that the accounts of 2 network users had not
been disabled.

One of these accounts is a 'privileged user account' enabling administrator access and is allocated to a
former employee who left the Council three years ago. We understand that the password of this
account has been changed since the employee left, but the account was not deleted to avoid errors
when running processes.

In line with good practice, the Council perform a review of network user accounts every six months.
We noted that evidence of this review is not always retained.

Action plan points 1-3

Password controls

Passwords represent a key control in restricting the access to IT systems and applications to authorised
users. It is essential that appropriate settings are in place to ensure passwords can provide the necessary
level of protection for sensitive IT systems and applications.

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 130

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08 4
Review of IT Systems and Applications

Overall, the Council has good arrangements for passwords controls over its systems. However, we
noted two weaknesses in the settings for password protection:

= information to retrieve the password of the root user in the UNIX operating system is stored
electronically; and

= user accounts on the network are not locked out after a number of invalid logon attempts.
Action plan points 4-5

Data Protection Act 1998

The Data Protection Act 1998 sets out the statutory obligations for organisations for managing
personal data. This includes the capture, holding and use or disclosure of personal data and ensuring
individuals are able to access any personal data which an organisation may hold on them. Compliance
with the Act is governed by the Information Commissioner.

A key objective of any organisation which holds personal data is to have in place appropriate policies
and procedures to ensure compliance with the Act. Data management is a topical issue, and is
particularly high profile due to recent publicity about the loss of personal data at Her Majesty's
Revenues and Customs. Failure to ensure adequate controls over personal data carries significant
reputational and financial risk.

Our review found that the arrangements in place at the Council were satisfactory for the purposes of
complying with the Act, including:

=  adata protection policy is in place and it complies with good practice;

=  guidance had been issued to users to ensure compliance with the policy;

=  additional security arrangements (e.g. encryption) of personal data was used for the transfer of
personal data; and

= atthe time of our review no instances of the loss of personal data had been reported to the
Council.

Change management

The Council runs approximately seventy databases and applications. Each database has a lead user who
can authorise changes directly from the system. The IT department maintains a master table that lists
all applications and the corresponding lead users.

We tested ten changes made to databases from several applications and found:

= two changes were approved by lead users who were not the nominated lead user stated on
the master table; and

= achange to a database was requested by an individual who is not a lead user.
We also tested a sample of ten changes to business applications and noted that:

=  One change record was closed in the HEAT system, which is the software used for the IT
helpdesk, and the lead user had not accepted its implementation; and

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 131

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08 5
Review of IT Systems and Applications

= No user test plan was attached to one change record.

Action plan points 6-7
USB devices
USB memory devices have the potential to introduce viruses to the Council network. There is also
arisk that these devices are used for unauthorised disclosures of data. The Council has started a
project to restrict access to USB memory devices by using a software package. Only certain
members of staff have been granted write access to USB devices.

During our audit, we noted that some training PCs can still write to USB memory devices.

Action plan point 8

Security testing

In order to protect the integrity of the Council's IT systems, it is necessary for a programme of
security testing to be undertaken. Such testing includes reviewing and installing software updates
and patches for the Council's IT operating system, and testing for security vulnerabilities that could
be exploited by hackers or unauthorised users ("penetration testing").

We noted that the Council does not perform penetration testing on a regular basis. The last
penetration testing that took place was in April 2008, two years after the previous test. This
increases the risk that unauthorised access to the system could be gained.

Windows patches are released by Microsoft on a regular basis. However, these patches are only
implemented in a PC when the machine is rebuilt. This process is usually performed every three

years.

Action plan points 9-10

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 132

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08
Review of IT Systems and Applications

A- Action plan

Finding

Recommendation and Management
Response

User access

1. Privileged access to the
network

One of the privileged user accounts on the
network belongs to an employee that left
the Council three years ago. The password
of this account was changed but the
account was not deleted to avoid errors
when running processes.

There is a risk that unauthorised access is
gained to network data.

Risk Assessment: Medium

Recommendation

The Council should review the processes
administered under this privileged account. The
account should then be disabled or deleted and
processes reassigned as appropriate.

Once this change is actioned, data processing
should be monitored for a period of time to
ensure that any errors are promptly detected and
resolved.

Management response

The privileged account referred to here
belonged to Craig Brown, a former Senior
Engineer. The account had been left open to
deal with any problems which may have
surfaced from any undocumented processes
Craig implemented. The password of this
account had been changed as soon as Craig left
the Council’s employment. The account has now
been disabled and we will deal with any
problems that may arise.

2. Leavers

We tested a sample of fifteen leavers and
found that the accounts of two users had
not been disabled. There is a risk that
unauthorised access could be gained to the
network.

Risk Assessment: Medium

Recommendation
Business Managers / Human resources should
promptly report staff movements to IT.

Leavers should have their user accounts deleted
or disabled on their leaving date.

Management response
Agreed

Implementation Date
Immediate

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 133

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08
Review of IT Systems and Applications

Finding

Recommendation and Management
Response

3. User access review

We understand that a review of network
user accounts is performed every six
months. However, we noted that evidence
of this review is not always retained. The
most recent evidence was from July 2007.

There is a risk that employees may gain
unauthorised access to the network.

Risk Assessment: Low

Recommendation

Evidence should be retained for the regular
review of network user accounts. This
evidence should include the user accounts that
were checked, any e-mail communications and
actions that were taken as a result of this
review.

Management response

We review user accounts on a six monthly
basis and we will retain evidence of each
review.

Implementation Date
by 24 December 2008

Password controls

4. Password for privileged account
Information to retrieve the password of
the root user for the UNIX system is
stored in a password-protected Word
document. The document contains the
data to be used in the retrieval of the
password for this user.

There is a risk that the password of the
root user could not be retrieved within a
reasonable time in the event of a disaster.

Risk Assessment: Low

Recommendation

The Council should detail the password of the
root user in a closed envelope. This envelope
should be properly sealed, countersigned and
stored in a fireproof safe.

A procedure should be implemented to detail
how members of staff could have access to this
envelope.

Management response

Our practice with keeping the passwords
electronically has been audited many times in the
past and has not been questioned. However the
password for the root users will be stored in an
envelope within the fireproof safe in the Service
Desk

Implementation Date
Immediate

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 134

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08 3
Review of IT Systems and Applications

Finding

Recommendation and Management
Response

5. Password settings

User accounts on the network are not
locked out after a number of invalid logon
attempts.

There is a risk that unauthorised access to
the network is gained through password
guessing or a brute force attack.

Risk Assessment: Low

Recommendation
Network user accounts should be locked out
after a number of invalid logon attempts.

This setting should be implemented as part of a
change management process that educates users
about the benefits and implications of this
change.

Management response

The incorrect password limit had been
implemented previously but relaxed due to the
excessive increase in the number of support
calls. It will be re-implemented but will result in
a considerably higher number of support calls
for the server team.

Implementation Date
by 24 December 2008

Change Management

6. Software change requests
Our review of a sample of ten changes to
business applications and noted that:

=  One change record was closed in
the HEAT system and the lead user
had not accepted its
implementation.

= No user test plan was attached to
one change record.

There is a risk that changes are not tested
adequately before being migrated into the
live environment. In addition, there is a
risk that changes do not meet business
requirements.

Risk Assessment: Low

Recommendation

Test plans should be attached to change records
once testing has been completed by lead users or
IT staff.

HEAT records should only be closed once the
lead user has formally accepted the
implementation of a change.

Management response
Agreed

Implementation Date
by 24 December 2008

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 135

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08
Review of IT Systems and Applications

Finding

Recommendation and Management
Response

7. Direct changes to databases
From a review of ten changes to databases,
we noted that:

= two changes to databases were
approved by users who were not the
nominated lead user per the master
table; and

= achange to a database was
requested by an individual who is
not a lead user.

There is a risk that unauthorised changes to
databases are performed.

Risk Assessment: Low

Recommendation

The Council should define a procedure to
update the table of lead users and applications
on a regular basis. Once updated, this document
should be communicated to all relevant
members of staff.

Direct changes to databases should only be
approved by lead users. In the event of an
emergency change; this should be retrospectively
approved by lead users.

Management response
Agreed

Implementation Date
by 24 December 2008

IT security

8. USB devices

Although the Council has restricted access
to USB memory devices to authorised
members of staff, we noted that some
training PCs still have write access to USB
memory devices.

There is a risk that data is saved to USB
memory devices by unauthorised users.

Risk Assessment: Low

Recommendation

The Council should reassess the user accounts
that have been granted write access to USB
devices. This access level should only be
granted to authorised individuals.

Management response

The IT Security forum has not as yet produced
the policy for controlling access by USB devices.
Software capable of managing USB devices has
been purchased as part of the Centennial
Security suite; however it has not been deployed
until the policy has been agreed. One of the
training PC’s was accessed to ascertain if the
alternative device registry method had blocked
the use of writing to USB device. This PC had
been locked previously but had recently been
patched and when tested it was possible to write
to the USB device. Desktop staff are checking
all training PCs.

Implementation Date
by 24 December 2008

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 136

Argyll and Bute Council 2007-08
Review of IT Systems and Applications

Finding

Recommendation and Management
Response

9. Penetration testing
We noted that the last two penetration tests
were performed in 2006 and April 2008.

There is a risk that new vulnerabilities in
systems and IT infrastructure are not
promptly addressed.

Risk Assessment: Medium

Recommendation

Giving the rate at which IT vulnerabilities are
identified and published in the Internet; the
Council should consider performing a
penetration test on a quarterly basis.

Management response

Penetration testing is now scheduled annually.
We will carry out as much penetration testing as
our budget allows.

Implementation Date
by 24 December 2008

10. Windows patches

Windows patches are released by
Microsoft on a regular basis. However, we
noted that these patches are only
implemented in a PC when the machine is
rebuilt. This process is usually performed
every three years.

There is a risk that Windows vulnerabilities
may be exploited by intruders or
"malware" (software designed to infiltrate
or damage a computer system) due to
patches not being applied on a regular
basis.

Risk Assessment: Low

Recommendation

The Council should update patches in PCs on a
more regular basis. We are aware that software
has been recently implemented to assist in the
identification of critical patches.

Patches should be subject to an adequate level of
testing before being implemented across the PC
estate

Management response

We have a WSUS service available to deliver
patches to desktops when required. There are
WSUS servers in Kilmory and key locations.
Rather than patch desktops when Microsoft
release patches we use Centennial Security
Advisor (CSA) to ascertain if a patch is
considered critical and to check if desktops are
vulnerable. There are currently no desktops
reported as vulnerable by CSA. Patches are
tested, and incorporated in the corporate build
constantly, and desktops are built to the highest
level of patch available.

Indiscriminate patching (even after testing) has
caused problems in the past, with non-standard
desktops and departmental applications.

Implementation Date
not applicable

© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 137

° Grant Thornton

www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd ('Grant Thornton
International'). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms independently.

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	5 AUDIT FOLLOW UP OF ISSUES FROM JUNE AUDIT COMMITTEE
	Audit follow Up of issues - equalities, 05/09/2008 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee
	Audit follow up issues - 20080520 Equality Impact Assessments report, 05/09/2008 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee
	Audit follow of issues - Library Purchasing Suppliers, 05/09/2008 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee

	6 PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2008-2009
	Progress Report 08_09 appendix to audit plan report

	7 EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2008-2009
	Ext and Int follow appendix 1a, 05/09/2008 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee
	ext & Int Appendix 1b - Summary of Progress - Internal Audit
	Ext & Int Appendix 2 Updated Action Points behind schedule - Internal Audit (Committee Report)
	Ext and Int follow appendix 3a, 05/09/2008 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee
	Ext and Int follow appendix 3b, 05/09/2008 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee
	Ext and Int follow up appendix 4, 05/09/2008 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee

	8 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE
	Internal audit Reports to Audit Committee CS Review of SW brief for smt aug08, 05/09/2008 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee
	Internal Audit Reports to Audit Committee Corporate Services Creditors (Interim), 05/09/2008 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee

	9 AUDIT SCOTLAND REPORTS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 2008-2009
	Audit Scotland Executive Summaries

	10 PYRAMID - PROGRESS REPORT
	11 SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORTS
	12 RISK MANAGEMENT AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY STRATEGY
	13 INTERNAL AUDIT SECONDMENT POLICY
	Policy on Internal Audit staff being seconded to other duties, 05/09/2008 Pre-Agenda Briefing of the Audit Committee

	14 INTERIM MANAGEMENT REPORT
	15 REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT
	16 IT SYSTEMS AND APPLICATIONS

